
 

 

 
 
 
 
Please ask for Charlotte Kearsey 
Direct Line: 01246 34 5236 
Email: committee.services@chesterfield.gov.uk 
 
The Chair and Members of Cabinet  

 17 May 2021 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 

Please attend a meeting of the CABINET to be held on TUESDAY, 25 MAY 
2021 at 10.30 am in Council Chamber, Town Hall, Rose Hill, Chesterfield, the 
agenda for which is set out below. 

 
Members of the public will be able to access the meeting online by following 

the link here. 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part 1(Public Information) 
 

1.    Declarations of Members' and Officers' Interests relating to items on the 
Agenda  
 

2.    Apologies for Absence  
 

3.    Minutes (Pages 3 - 10) 
 
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 
13 April, 2021.  
 

4.    Forward Plan  
 
Please follow the link below to view the latest Forward Plan. 
 
Forward Plan 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC7EjAgwra2iKCwC0YKf7Niw
http://chesterfield.moderngov.co.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=134&RD=0&bcr=1


 
 

5.    Delegation Report (Pages 11 - 12) 
 

Items Recommended to Cabinet via Cabinet Members 
 
Cabinet Member for Economic Growth 
 
6.    Assurance Framework for Staveley Town Deal (Pages 13 - 76) 

 
Cabinet Member for Governance 
 
7.    Review of the Member Development Policy (Pages 77 - 94) 

 
 

Yours sincerely, 
 

 
 
Local Government and Regulatory Law Manager and Monitoring Officer 

 
  

 



CABINET 13.04.21 

1 
 
 

CABINET 
 

Tuesday, 13th April, 2021 
 

Present:- 
 

Councillor P Gilby (Chair) 

 
Councillors Blank 

D Collins 
Holmes 
J Innes 
  

Councillors 
 

Ludlow 
Mannion-Brunt 
Sarvent 
Serjeant 
 

Non Voting 
Members 

P Innes   

 
*Matters dealt with under the Delegation Scheme 
 

73    DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' AND OFFICERS' INTERESTS 
RELATING TO ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
 
No declarations of interest were received.   
 

74    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
No apologies for absence were received. 
 

75    MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – 
 
That the minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 16 March, 2021 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

76    FORWARD PLAN  
 
The Forward Plan for the four month period 1 May to 31 August, 2021 
was reported for information. 
 
*RESOLVED – 
 
That the Forward Plan be noted. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



CABINET 13.04.21 

2 
 
 

 
77    DELEGATION REPORT  

 
Decisions taken by Cabinet Members during February and March, 2021 
were reported.  
 
*RESOLVED –  
 
That the Delegation Report be noted.  
 

78    REVIEW OF THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND THE 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  
 
The Internal Audit Consortium Manager submitted a report asking 
members to consider and review Council compliance with the Code of 
Corporate Governance during 2020/21, and to approve the Annual 
Governance Statement for onward submission to and sign off by the 
council’s Standards and Audit Committee.  
 
The report noted that the Code of Corporate Governance reflected the 
most recent guidance issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA).  
 
The Internal Audit Consortium Manager confirmed that the report and 
various supporting appendices comprising the Annual Governance 
Statement would be presented for final approval at the next meeting of 
the Standards and Audit Committee on 21 April, 2021. 
 
*RESOLVED – 
 
That it be recommended to the Standards and Audit Committee: 
 

1. That the supporting documents to the officer’s report, attached at 
Appendices 1, 2 and 3, be approved and the Annual Governance 
Statement be signed by the Leader and Chief Executive.  
 

2. That a further review of Council compliance with of the Code of 
Corporate Governance be undertaken in 12 months’ time. 
 

3. That progress with regard to the issues and future challenges 
identified in the Annual Governance Statement be monitored by the 
Corporate Leadership Team. 

Page 4



CABINET 13.04.21 

3 
 
 

 
REASONS FOR DECISIONS 
 

1. To enable the Cabinet and the Standards and Audit Committee to 
monitor compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance. 
 

2. To comply with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015. 
 

3. To support the maintenance of sound governance arrangements 
within the Council. 

 
79    EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  

 
RESOLVED –  
 
That under Regulation 21(1)(b) of the Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2000, the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972 – as they contained information relating to financial 
and business affairs. 
 

80    BUILDING CLEANING DSO BUSINESS PLAN 2021/22  
 
The Interim Service Director - Finance presented a report asking 
members to approve the Business Plan 2021/22 for the Building Cleaning 
Direct Services Organisation (DSO). 
 
The DSO recharged the Council’s General Fund Revenue Budget, 
Housing Revenue Account, and various external customers for the 
provision of building cleaning services. During the pandemic, the DSO 
had played a key role in keeping the Council’s buildings safe for members 
of the public to visit and council staff to carry out their roles. 
 
The original forecast for 2020/21 and the current estimated outturn at 
year-end were detailed in Appendix A of the officer’s report.  
 
Under the current arrangements the costs of providing building cleaning 
services were accounted for separately as a trading account and charges 

Page 5



CABINET 13.04.21 

4 
 
 

made to customers in receipt of those services. These arrangements 
would continue in 2021/22. 
 
From 2022/23, however, it was proposed that the costs for service 
delivery be directly charged to portfolios, which would negate the 
requirement to keep a separate trading account and eliminate the need 
for the current accounting arrangements. This change to the accounting 
arrangements would not impact on the overall financial position of the 
General Fund. 
 
*RESOLVED – 
 

1. That the Building Cleaning D.S.O. Business Plan forecast for 
2021/22 be approved. 
 

2. That the proposal to move to new accounting arrangements from 
2022/23 be noted.  

 
REASON FOR DECISIONS 
 
To update the Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan. 
 

81    LANDSCAPE AND STREETSCENE SERVICES DSO BUSINESS 
PLAN 2021/22  
 
The Interim Service Director - Finance presented a report asking 
members to approve the Business Plan 2021/22 for the Landscape & 
Streetscene Services Direct Services Organisation (DSO). 
 
The DSO recharged the Council’s General Fund Revenue Budget, 
Housing Revenue Account and various external customers for the 
provision of street cleaning, grounds maintenance and drainage services. 
 
The original forecast for 2020/21 and the current estimated outturn at 
year-end were detailed in Appendix A of the officer’s report.  
 
Under the current arrangements the costs of providing landscape and 
streetscene services were accounted for separately as a trading account 
and charges made to customers in receipt of those services. These 
arrangements would continue in 2021/22. 
 

Page 6



CABINET 13.04.21 

5 
 
 

From 2022/23, however, it was proposed that the costs for service 
delivery be directly charged to portfolios, which would negate the 
requirement to keep a separate trading account and eliminate the need 
for the current accounting arrangements. This change to the accounting 
arrangements would not impact on the overall financial position of the 
General Fund. 
 
*RESOLVED – 
 

1. That the Landscape and Streetscene Services DSO Business Plan 
forecast for 2021/22 be approved. 
 

2. That the proposal to move to new accounting arrangements from 
2022/23 be noted. 

 
REASON FOR DECISIONS 
 
To update the Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan. 
 

82    SECURITY SERVICES DSO BUSINESS PLAN 2021/22  
 
The Interim Service Director - Finance presented a report asking 
members to approve the Business Plan 2021/22 for the Security 
Services Direct Services Organisation (DSO). 
 
The original forecast for 2020/21 and the current estimated outturn for 
year-end were detailed in Appendix A of the officer’s report.  
 
Under the current arrangements the costs of providing security services 
were accounted for separately as a trading account and charges made to 
customers in receipt of those services. These arrangements would 
continue in 2021/22.  
 
From 2022/23, however, it was proposed that the costs for service 
delivery be directly charged to portfolios, which would negate the 
requirement to keep a separate trading account and eliminate the need 
for the current accounting arrangements. This change to the accounting 
arrangements would not impact on the overall financial position of the 
General Fund. 
 
*RESOLVED – 
 

Page 7



CABINET 13.04.21 

6 
 
 

1. That the Security Services DSO Business Plan forecast for 2021/22 
be approved. 
 

2. That the proposal to move to new accounting arrangements from 
2022/23 be noted. 

 
REASON FOR DECISIONS 
 
To update the Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan. 
 

83    OPERATIONAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT DSO BUSINESS PLAN 
2021/22  
 
The Interim Service Director - Finance presented a report asking 
members to approve the Business Plan 2021/22 for the Operational 
Services Division (OSD) Direct Services Organisation (DSO). 
 
The Business Plan for 2021/22 and the current estimated outturn for year-
end were detailed in Appendix A of the officer’s report.  
 
Under the current arrangements the costs of providing operational 
services were accounted for separately as a trading account and charges 
made to customers in receipt of those services. These arrangements 
would continue in 2021/22. 
 
From 2022/23, however, it was proposed that the costs for service 
delivery be directly charged to portfolios, which would negate the 
requirement to keep a separate trading account and eliminate the need 
for the current accounting arrangements. This change to the accounting 
arrangements would not impact on the overall financial position of the 
General Fund. 
 
*RESOLVED – 
 

1. That the Operational Services Department DSO Business Plan 
forecast for 2021/22 be approved. 

 
2. That the proposal to move to new accounting arrangements from 

2022/23 be noted. 
 
REASON FOR DECISIONS 
 

Page 8



CABINET 13.04.21 

7 
 
 

To update the Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan. 
 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET DR 25.05.21 
1 

 
 

CABINET MEETING 
 

25 May 2021 
 

DELEGATION REPORT 
                                                                                                                     

DECISIONS TAKEN BY LEAD MEMBERS 
 
2020/21 
 
Cabinet Member for Business Transformation and Customers 
 

Decision 
Record No. 

Subject Delegation 
Reference 

Date of Decision 

19/20/21 Additional Restrictions  
Grant Scheme Addendum 
(April 2021) 

CB000L 9 April 2021 

 
Decision 
 
(1) That the Additional Restrictions Grant Scheme Addendum (April 2021) for 

Chesterfield Borough Council be approved and implemented.  
 
(2) That the Service Director - Digital, HR and Customer Services, in 

conjunction with the Service Director - Economic Growth and the Cabinet 
Member for Business Transformation and Customers, be granted 
delegated authority to complete regular reviews of the scheme, ensuring 
Grant funds are fully utilised for the benefit of local businesses. 

 

 
Reason for Decision 
 
To enable Chesterfield Borough Council to distribute Additional Restrictions 
Grant Scheme funding, to the benefit of local businesses and the local economy. 
 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



CABINET DR 25.05.21 
2 

 
 

2021/22 
 
Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing 
 

Decision 
Record No. 

Subject Delegation 
Reference 

Date of Decision 

1/21/22 Amendment of current 
working practices to enable 
enforcement of littering on 
private land 

HW300L 11 May 2021 

 
Decision 
 
That the request to carry out litter enforcement on private land be approved. 
 

 
Reason for Decision 
 
To seek approval to revise the current litter enforcement working practices to 
enable enforcement of littering on private land, where the landowner has given 
permission to do so. 
 
 

Page 12



 

 

For publication 

 

Staveley Town Deal Assurance Framework 

 

Meeting: 

 

Cabinet  

Date:  

 

25 May 2021 

Cabinet 

portfolio: 

 

Economic Growth 

Directorate: 

 

Economic Growth 

 

 

1.0 Purpose of the report 

 

1.1 The report presents an Assurance Framework outlining the governance to 

be put in place for managing the Staveley Town Deal, including the role 

that Chesterfield Borough Council will play as the Accountable Body for 

the Towns Fund. 

 

2.0 Recommendations 

 

2.1 That the Assurance Framework be approved and the roles set out within it 

for members, officers and groups within the council be noted. 

 

2.2 That Cabinet delegate authority to the Chair of the internal Town Deal 

Programme Board to make recommendations to the Staveley Town Deal 

Board on whether or not to approve full business cases for Town Deal 

projects. 

 

2.3 That any recommendations for changes made by the Staveley Town Deal 

Board following its annual review of the Assurance Framework are 

brought back to Cabinet for approval. 

 

2.4 That Cabinet note the Staveley Town Deal Programme Equalities Impact 

Assessment that has been undertaken to support delivery of the Town 

Deal in line with the council’s commitment to equality and diversity. 

  

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



3.0 Reasons for recommendations 

 

3.1 To ensure that sound governance is in place for the Staveley Town Deal 

and that the role for Chesterfield Borough Council as the Accountable 

Body is clearly set out. 

 

4.0 Background 

 

4.1 Reports have recently come to Cabinet and to the Joint Cabinet 

Employment and General Committee regarding the Staveley Town Deal. 

These have respectively set out the Town Investment Plan for Staveley 

and presented proposals for resources to manage the Town Deal. As 

noted in both reports, the Town Deal process places greater emphasis on 

local decision making and management than many recent comparable 

funding streams. One of the consequences of this is that functions that 

might otherwise sit within a government department or Local Enterprise 

Partnership are to be carried out by Chesterfield Borough Council. In 

common with the arrangements for other towns in the programme, it will 

be the borough, district or unitary council for the area that fulfills the role 

of the Accountable Body for the fund. 

 

4.2 Another feature of the localisation of responsibility is that ‘local assurance 

mechanisms’ are expected to be in place in order to guide decisions 

made. This includes decisions regarding whether or not to approve the 

projects that make up the Staveley Town Investment Plan based on the 

business cases submitted. 

 

4.3 These local mechanisms are also the way in which clarity should be 

brought to the respective roles of the borough council, as the Accountable 

Body, and the Staveley Town Deal Board, which has been specifically set 

up in order to bring stakeholders together to lead the Town Deal process. 

On this, guidance issued by government in December 2020 (regarding the 

development of project business cases) states that: 

 

The accountable body (as identified in the Town Investment Plan) will be 

accountable for implementing the Town Deal. The Town Deal Board 

should have an ongoing role and have sight of decisions as projects are 

developed in more detail or possible changes are made. The nature and 

degree of the Board’s oversight should be agreed locally. 

 

Locally, ultimate decision-making responsibility will lie with the 

accountable body, but the Town Deal Board Chair will be a signatory to 

Page 14



the Summary Document and should make decisions in partnership and 

collaboration with the Town Deal Board. 

 

4.4 Given the above, an Assurance Framework has been developed in order 

to provide clarity regarding the respective roles of bodies involved in the 

governance of the Town Deal programme. An assurance framework is 

commonly used for this purpose by Local Enterprise Partnerships and 

other bodies that are accountable for managing public money.  

 

4.5  The framework sets out the structure and roles that bodies will play, 

including specific groups and officers within organisations, and the 

processes and policies that will apply to the decision making and oversight 

that are required in managing the Town Deal programme. In adopting and 

adhering to the framework, the council and its partners can ensure: 

 

 Accountable decision making 

 Responsible use of public money including achieving value for 

money 

 Effective monitoring and evaluation 

 

4.6 The framework has been developed through the programme board now 

in place within the council. This board is referred to within the framework 

as the Town Deal Programme Board. The board currently reports into the 

Corporate Leadership Team ahead of being incorporated within the new 

arrangements for project and programme management due to come into 

place later in the year. Comments on the framework have also been 

received from the D2N2 Local Enterprise Partnership and representative 

of the government’s Cities and Local Growth Unit. 

 

4.7 Following development by the Town Deal Programme Board, the 

framework was noted at the Staveley Town Deal Board on 14th May. The 

framework will be jointly owned by the Staveley Town Deal Board and 

Chesterfield Borough Council. Once approved by both bodies, it will be 

subject to an annual review. This will be undertaken by the Town Deal 

Programme Board and recommendations for changes made to the 

Staveley Town Deal Board in the first instance. Any changes approved by 

the Staveley Town Deal Board would then come back to Cabinet for 

approval before the framework is revised. 

 

  

Page 15



Key components of the Assurance Framework 

 

4.8 The Framework outlines the roles that different bodies will play through 

the process of developing and delivering the Town Deal programme. In 

particular, it sets out officers and members within the council will be part 

of the governance structure and how these groups will relate to the 

Staveley Town Deal Board. The key groups are set out in the diagram 

below. 

 

 
 

4.9 The roles of each group are then summarised in the table below. 

 

Staveley Town Deal Board  Working in partnership with CBC as the 

Accountable Body, Staveley Town Deal Board will 

provide strategic direction to the development 

and implementation of the Staveley Town Deal. 

The Board has a critical role to play in ensuring a 

strong and diverse voice from Staveley 

communities and stakeholders is brought to the 

discussions and decisions on the Town Deal. The 

Board may agree to put in place sub-groups for 

particular purposes in line with its overall 

purpose. The Terms of Reference for the Board 

from January 2020 are included at Appendix one 

of the Assurance Framework (it is due to review 

Page 16



its Terms of Reference at a forthcoming Board 

meeting). 

CBC Cabinet As the Accountable Body for the Towns Fund, 

CBC will have a range of responsibilities as set 

out in the next section. The role of its Cabinet will 

be to ensure that resources and arrangements 

are in place to discharge those accountable body 

responsibilities. It will be the senior decision 

making body within the Council with regard to 

the Town Deal, though it may chose to delegate 

decisions for example to the Programme Board 

(through its Chair). Decisions taken by Cabinet 

will be subject to scrutiny through the existing 

CBC scrutiny process. 

CBC Finance and 

Performance Board 

CBC Finance and Performance Board includes 

senior officer representation (including s. 151 

officer) together with the Leader and Deputy 

Leader. It provide a further line of assurance 

within the council with regard to the managing of 

public money as the Town Deal programme 

forms part of the council’s wider Capital 

Programme. It will provide a route for escalation 

of programme management issues and risks 

within the council where these cannot be 

managed or mitigated by the Programme Board. 

Town Deal Programme 

Board 

The Town Deal Programme Board is a CBC 

officer group established to provide oversight of 

the programme delivery on behalf of the 

accountable body. It includes the CBC s. 151 

officer who, together with the Chief Executive, 

will be required to provide formal assurance to 

government on behalf of the council as the 

accountable body. The Board is run in line with 

the wider project and programme 

methodologies in place within the council. It will 

report internally within CBC and will also provide 

regular updates and reports directly to the 

Staveley Town Deal Board. The Terms of 

Reference for the Programme Board are 

included at Appendix two of the Assurance 

Framework. 

Page 17



Town Deal Programme 

Team 

The team has been established in order to 

provide the dedicated resources required to 

manage the programme and ensure the council 

can fulfil its role as the Accountable Body. It 

includes a programme manager with day to day 

responsibility for the delivery of the Deal. The 

team will also provide secretariat support to the 

Staveley Town Deal Board.  

Project sponsor group The project sponsor group is not a decision 

making body but a critical liaison group within 

the overall governance structure. It brings 

together the nominated lead officer from within 

each of the organisations responsible for 

sponsoring the individual projects that make up 

the Town Deal. It provides an opportunity for the 

programme team to give information, set out 

programme management requirements and 

consider support requirements. 

MHCLG MHCLG is the lead government department for 

the Towns Fund. A representative is invited to 

attend all meetings of the Staveley Town Deal 

Board. CBC as the accountable body will provide 

regular reports to MHCLG on implementation of 

the Town Deal. 

Towns Fund Delivery 

Partner 

The Towns Fund Delivery Partner has been 

appointed by government to support all towns in 

their work to develop and deliver Town Deals. A 

representative from the TFDP is invited to all 

meetings of the Staveley Town Deal Board. The 

TFDP will also provide advice and support 

directly to both the Programme Team and to 

Project sponsors – individually and collectively. 

 

4.10 The Framework provides details on the processes that will apply as 

business cases for projects are developed and approved, as well as how 

the delivery of projects will be managed. In doing so it sets out how the 

council will fulfil its Accountable Body role. 

 

4.11 A critical component of this will be the Town Deal Programme Board, 

which will be the lead group overseeing the Deal programme on behalf of 

the council as Accountable Body. This will include making 

recommendations to the Staveley Town Deal Board as to whether or not 

Page 18



to approve business cases for Town Deal projects, following an external 

assurance process. As set out in recommendation 2.2, Cabinet is asked to 

delegate authority to the Chair of that Board to play this role on behalf of 

the Accountable Body. 

 

5.0 Alternative options 

 

5.1 A range of alternative options has been considered in developing the 

Assurance Framework. The option of managing the Town Deal without 

any framework has been discounted since it is clear from government 

guidance that having local assurance mechanisms in place is a 

requirement for the Towns Fund. These mechanisms therefore require 

documentation in some form as there is no existing guide that could be 

used for this purpose. 

 

5.2 Another alternative has been to use an existing framework from another 

Town Deal area and/or Local Enterprise Partnership. These sources have 

been used in order to inform the drafting of the Staveley Assurance 

Framework. Discussion has taken place with North Lincolnshire council 

which has shared its Assurance Framework and assurance mapping. 

These have contributed to the Staveley Framework. Similar, D2N2 has 

supported the development of this framework and its Assurance 

Framework as well as the SCR framework have been reviewed and 

elements used to inform the Staveley document. Whilst it has not been 

possible to use another framework in its entirety, since none considered 

would suit the local needs, other frameworks have been valuable in 

informing the Staveley Framework. 

 

5.3 Another alternative considered was to outsource the assurance work to 

another body. Whilst this is being done in order to obtain an expert and 

independent view of business case compliance with the Treasury Green 

Book, it is not possible to outsource the role of Accountable Body. In any 

case, another body would still require an Assurance Framework or similar 

in order to guide its approach. 

 

5.4 Finally, alternatives have been considered in terms of the level of detail to 

provide within the framework. The approach for the document proposed 

here has been to provide sufficient detail where processes are not already 

established – for example the development and approval of full business 

cases – but to rely in other places where possible on existing policies 

rather than replicate those again within the framework. In doing so, it is 

hoped the right level of detail is available for those involved in the 

Page 19



governance and those who will be holding the various bodies working on 

the Town Deal to account. 

 

6.0 Implications for consideration – Council Plan 

 

6.1 As set out in previous reports, the Staveley Town Investment Plan aligns 

well with the current council plan. In particular the Town Deal priorities 

align strongly with the following objectives: 

 

 Chesterfield Borough – a great place to live, work and visit 

 Vibrant town centres 

 Build a stronger business base 

 Develop an inclusive and environmentally sustainable approach to 

growth 

 Improve our environment and enhance community safety for all our 

communities and future generations 

 Help our communities to improve their health and wellbeing 

 Reduce inequality and provide support to vulnerable people 

 

6.2 The Staveley Town Deal is also well aligned to the council’s Growth 

Strategy (2019-23) with its three themes: 

 

 Supporting business growth and investment 

 A great place to live, visit and do business 

 An inclusive approach to growth 

 

The Deal will also make a positive contribution to the council’s Covid 

recovery planning and its response to the Climate Change Emergency. 

 

7.0 Implications for consideration – Financial and Value for Money 

 

7.1 Resources for delivering the council’s role as set out in the Assurance 

Framework have already been taken into account in the proposals for 

managing the Town Deal that were approved by the Joint Cabinet 

Employment and General Committee on 13th April 2021. The role played 

by the council in fulfilling its Accountable Body requirements in line with 

the Assurance Framework will be a significant one with implications for a 

number of teams. This is in line with the resource implications noted in 

the previous report and its appendix which analysed tasks and anticipated 

resource demands. 

 

Page 20



7.2 The Framework has been reviewed by the council’s s. 151 officer as, 

together with the Chief Executive, she will play a key role within the Town 

Deal governance. For instance, returns made to government – including 

monitoring returns and confirmation of business case approvals – will 

need to be signed by the s. 151 officer. The s. 151 officer has confirmed 

that she is satisfied the Assurance Framework provides a sound basis for 

setting out the governance and processes required to manage the Town 

Deal programme in line with the Towns Fund requirements and wider 

considerations of managing public money. 

 

7.3 In particular, in setting out responsibilities the Framework seeks to reduce 

the financial risks to the council to a minimum level. However, it should be 

noted that the projects included within the Town Deal are being 

sponsored by a wide range of organisations with varying financial 

capacity. For those organisations where financial capacity could present 

an issue in terms of delivering multi-million pound capital projects, there 

will be particular attention paid to managing that financial risk within the 

relevant sections of the business cases as these are developed and come 

forward for approval. The assurance process to be conducted for each 

business case is a key control with regard to managing financial risk for 

both the council and project sponsor organisations. 

 

7.4 Where the Town Deal Programme Board has concerns regarding financial 

(or any other risk) as projects move into delivery phase, it has an 

escalation route as set out within the Assurance Framework to bring 

issues to the council’s Finance and Performance Board. This will ensure 

that key Cabinet members are made aware of issues and able to provide 

direction on steps to mitigate risks. 

 

7.5 As noted in the previous report on Town Deal resources, there is a need 

to consider further the audit (internal and external) requirements that will 

be appropriate for the Town Deal programme. Where these rely on 

internal audit activity, this will come at an indirect cost to the council since 

other planned audit work would need to be re-programmed to 

accommodate the required audit activity. Early discussion on this has 

taken place with the Internal Audit Consortium Manager who has also 

reviewed the Assurance Framework. If external audit work is deemed to 

be required, this would be an additional direct cost, potentially in the 

region of £10k. Further advice will be sought from government regarding 

audit requirements before any commitment to spend on external audit is 

made. 

 

Page 21



8.0 Implications for consideration – Legal 

 

8.1 Since the Assurance Framework is not a legal document, it has not been 

subject to external legal advice. However, it has been reviewed by the 

council’s Monitoring Officer and Property Procurement and Contracts Law 

Manager who both deem it fit for purpose. 

 

8.2 The Assurance Framework outlines the approach for contracting with the 

organisations that are set to deliver the Town Deal projects. Of the 11 

projects proposed within the Town Deal, 8 are led by organisations other 

than the borough council, with a range of public, private and third sector 

partners. Contractual funding agreements will need to be agreed with 

each of these in order to release funding and ensure that conditions of 

funding are met. Whilst any future legal action would clearly be a last 

resort, the basis for this would be the individual contracts in place with 

each project sponsor organisation rather than the Assurance Framework. 

 

8.3 The Framework includes reference to the need for the council to take 

advice where relevant regarding subsidy control (the post-Brexit 

consideration that is to be applied following the ending of the previous 

State Aid regime). This will be important in providing government and the 

public with assurance that Towns Fund money is being used in 

compliance with this requirement. 

 

9.0 Implications for consideration – Human resources 

 

9.1 As noted above, the posts that are deemed to be necessary for delivering 

against the responsibilities set out within the Assurance Framework have 

been established following approval in April 2021 by the Joint Cabinet 

Employment and General Committee. Whilst the position will be kept 

under review, it is considered that adequate resources will be in place 

once those posts are filled.  

 

9.2 However, it should also be noted that a number of officers across the 

council will be involved in supporting the Town Deal programme, in 

addition to the dedicated team that is being established. This includes the 

members of the Town Deal Programme Board, as set out in the Terms of 

Reference for that Board which are included as appendix two to the 

Assurance Framework. The roles that officers are being asked to play are 

not deemed to create any additional responsibilities outside of their 

existing job roles; however there will be an implication in terms of 

Page 22



capacity given the need to contribute to the programme throughout its 5 

year life. 

 

10.0 Implications for consideration – Risk Management 

 

10.1 A key role for the Assurance Framework is ensuring that risk is mitigated 

as effectively as possible when considering the development and delivery 

of the Town Deal programme over the next 5 years. Through setting out 

the four ‘lines of defence’, the Framework will be used to provide 

assurance that risk is being effectively managed and mitigated at 

programme and project level. A risk register will be developed by the 

Town Deal Programme Board and reviewed as per section 5 of the 

Assurance Framework. 

 

10.2 Specific risks relating to the Assurance Framework itself are set out in the 

table below. 

 

Description 

of the risk 

Impact Likelihood Mitigating 

action 

Impact Likelihood 

The Assurance 

Framework is 

not fit for 

purpose in 

terms of 

ensuring good 

governance 

and use of 

public money 

Medium Medium Reviews of the 

framework by 

MHCLG, 

Cabinet and 

Town Deal 

Board 

Medium Low 

Assurance 

Framework 

places 

demands on 

council 

officers and 

teams that 

cannot be met 

Medium High Resources 

approved in 

April 2021 to 

mitigate this; 

position to be 

kept under 

close review 

Medium Medium 

Lack of 

compliance 

with the 

Framework 

once in place 

Medium Medium Prompt 

escalation 

within CBC and 

to the Town 

Deal Board; 

funding 

Medium Low 

Page 23



agreements 

used to drive 

compliance; 

new 

programme 

team in place 

to support 

partners to 

comply 

Town Deal 

Programme 

Board unable 

to fulfil its role 

as set out in 

the 

Framework 

Medium Low Keep 

membership 

and role under 

review; ensure 

other parts of 

governance 

structure hold 

programme 

board to 

account; co-

opt members 

as necessary if 

capacity or 

capability 

become issues 

Low Low 

Wider policy 

shifts not 

reflected in 

the 

Framework 

Low Medium Keep 

framework 

under review; 

ensure that 

relevant policy 

change 

brought to 

attention of 

Programme 

board and 

Town Deal 

Board; clear 

documentation 

maintained of 

variations from 

Framework 

required by 

new policy 

Low Low 

Page 24



 

11.0 Implications for consideration – Community wellbeing 

 

11.1 The Town Deal includes a number of projects that would contribute 

directly and positively to community wellbeing in the Staveley area. The 

Staveley Town Investment Plan submitted in December 2020 sets out the 

engagement that has taken place with the community to inform the 

priorities set. Health and wellbeing is one of the four thematic priorities 

around which the plan has been developed. 

 

12.0 Implications for consideration – Economy and skills 

 

12.1 As set out in previous reports, a key rationale for the Towns Fund has 

been to drive growth in towns that may otherwise be left behind in terms 

of the economy and skills. The projects within the Staveley Town 

Investment Plan have been assessed in terms of the contribution they will 

make to the future economy of the area. The investment of c. £25m 

clearly has the potential to make a transformational impact in this regard 

and two of the four thematic priorities in the plan relate directly to 

economy and skills. 

 

12.2 The Town Deal is also a key part of the economic recovery plan that the 

council has adopted. Officers and partners are already collaborating to 

ensure the benefits to the local economy from the investment made 

through the Towns Fund are maximised. This will include the use of local 

labour clauses where Town Deal projects require planning permission, 

meet the buyer events to facilitate local supply chain benefits and 

encouraging early engagement in skills programmes and initiatives to 

increase opportunities for local residents. 

 

13.0 Implications for consideration – Climate change 

 

13.1 Each project within the Staveley Town Investment Plan has been 

considered from the perspective of the contribution it can make to low 

carbon growth as this is a key criteria set by government for Town Deals. 

The plan sets out how the projects will help to drive more sustainable 

growth in the Staveley area, in turn contributing to the council’s response 

to the declared Climate Change Emergency. 

 

13.2 Now that project sponsors are developing their full business cases, they 

will be required to use that process to demonstrate ways in which this 

theme can be addressed. Advice on delivering clean growth through the 

Page 25



Town Deal has been received from the national team advising 

participating towns. This support together with input from the council’s 

climate change officer (who has already met with the project sponsors), 

will be used as business cases are developed in order to maximise the 

positive impacts that Town Deal projects can have with regard to climate 

change. 

 

14.0 Implications for consideration – Equality and diversity 

 

14.1 One of the conditions set out for the Town Deal within the Heads of 

Terms issued on 3rd March related to the Public Sector Equality Duty and a 

requirement that a programme-wide impact assessment is undertaken as 

well as relevant project-level assessments. 

 

14.2 A draft Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) for the Town Deal programme 

has now been developed and is included as appendix 2 to this report for 

Cabinet to note. The draft assessment is also due to go to the May 

meeting of the Staveley Town Deal Board. It forms part of the wider 

assurance that is described in the Assurance Framework. 

 

14.3 Whilst the EIA will continue to evolve as the programme develops, the 

initial assessment shows ways in which projects within the Town Deal 

have the potential to make a positive equalities impact. 

 

14.4 The Assurance Framework includes a Diversity Statement that sets out the 

commitment partners are making to diversity and equality in developing 

and delivering the Town Deal.  

 

Decision information 

 

Key decision number 1035 

Wards affected Lowgates & Woodthorpe, Middlecroft & 

Poolsbrook, Hollingwood & Inkersall, Barrow Hill & 

New Whittington 

 

Document information 

 

Report authors 

Lynda Sharp - Economic Development Manager – Economic Growth 

Neil Johnson - Service Director Economic Growth 

Michael Rich, Interim Director (Projects) 

Page 26



Lindsay Wetton – Town Deal Manager 

Background documents 

These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a material extent 

when the report was prepared. 

N/A 

Appendices to the report 

Appendix 1 Staveley Town Deal Assurance Framework 

Appendix 2 Staveley Town Deal Programme Equalities Impact 

Assessment 

 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



   
 

1 
 

 

 

 

 

Staveley Town Deal  

Assurance Framework 

 

 

 

V1.1 – FOR CABINET APPROVAL 

 

 

Page 29

kearseyc
Typewriter
Appendix 1



   
 

2 
 

Contents 

 

1. Introduction and purpose 

2. Structures and Roles 

3. Policies and procedures 

4. Project selection, appraisal and approval 

5. Risk and assurance 

6. Contract management 

7. Monitoring and evaluation 

8. Ways of working 

9. Communications and transparency 

 

Appendices 

A. Terms of Reference – Staveley Town Deal Board 

B. Terms of Reference – Town Deal Programme Board 

C. Staveley Town Deal Diversity Statement 

D. Assurance overview and 4 lines of defence model 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 30



   
 

3 
 

1. Introduction and purpose 

Purpose 

This Assurance Framework sets out how the Staveley Town Deal Board and Chesterfield Borough 

Council (as the Accountable Body for the Towns Fund) will undertake their roles to ensure good 

governance and sound use of public money with respect to the Towns Fund allocation for 

Staveley. 

The framework sets out the structure and roles that bodies will play, including specific groups 

and officers within organisations, and the processes and policies that will apply to the decision 

making and oversight that are required in managing the Town Deal programme. 

Adherence to the framework should ensure: 

• Accountable decision making 

• Responsible use of public money including achieving value for money 

• Effective monitoring and evaluation 

The framework is jointly owned by the Staveley Town Deal Board and Chesterfield Borough 

Council. It was approved by both organisations in May 2021 and is subject to an annual review. 

 

The Town Deal 

Staveley was one of 101 towns across England to be invited in 2019 to agree a Town Deal with 

government. A Town Deal Board was formed in January 2020 and work was commissioned to 

prepare a Town Investment Plan in line with the guidance issued. Following the submission of a 

Town Investment Plan for Staveley by the Staveley Town Deal Board in December 2020, 

government issued Heads of Terms for the Staveley Town Deal in March 2021. These included an 

allocation from the government Towns Fund of £25.2m over 5 years to deliver the Town 

Investment Plan. 

In order to draw down the allocated funding, a full business case for each project within the 

Town Investment Plan is required. The assurance process for the business cases will be a local 

one, to be delivered in line with this framework and government guidance. 

Once government has confirmed it is satisfied with the summary of the business case and the 

outcome of the local assurance, projects will draw down funding and commence delivery. 

Delivery of individual projects and the wider Town Investment Plan will continue to be overseen 

by the Town Deal Board. 

 

  

Page 31



   
 

4 
 

2. Structure and roles 

The two key bodies with responsibilities to develop and deliver the Town Deal are Staveley Town 

Deal Board and Chesterfield Borough Council, the latter being the Accountable Body for the 

Towns Fund. Detailed guidance was provided by government in June 2020 on the respective 

roles of these bodies (see section 4.10 of the guidance here). This framework has been 

developed in line with this guidance, though it was focused more on the development of the 

Town Investment Plan than the totality of the Town Deal programme. Looking to the phases of 

the programme beyond the Town Investment Plan, more recent guidance summarises the roles 

as follows: 

The accountable body (as identified in the Town Investment Plan) will be accountable for 

implementing the Town Deal. The Town Deal Board should have an ongoing role and have 

sight of decisions as projects are developed in more detail or possible changes are made. 

The nature and degree of the Board’s oversight should be agreed locally. 

Locally, ultimate decision-making responsibility will lie with the accountable body, but the 

Town Deal Board Chair will be a signatory to the Summary Document and should make 

decisions in partnership and collaboration with the Town Deal Board 

(Towns Fund guidance (stage two): business case development, Dec 2020 section 2.4-2.5) 

 

The overall governance structure for the Staveley Town Deal is shown below. 

 

 

Page 32

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/926422/Towns_Fund_further_guidance.pdf


   
 

5 
 

More detail on the respective roles of the groups in the diagram are included within subsequent 

sections as key activities and processes are described. However, with a focus on phases following 

the submission of the Town Investment Plan, the roles in brief are: 

Staveley Town Deal Board  Working in partnership with CBC as the Accountable Body, 
Staveley Town Deal Board will provide strategic direction to 
the development and implementation of the Staveley Town 
Deal. The Board has a critical role to play in ensuring a 
strong and diverse voice from Staveley communities and 
stakeholders is brought to the discussions and decisions on 
the Town Deal. The Board may agree to put in place sub-
groups for particular purposes in line with its overall 
purpose. The Terms of Reference for the Board are 
included at Appendix one and will be kept under regular 
review. 

CBC Cabinet As the Accountable Body for the Towns Fund, CBC will have 
a range of responsibilities as set out in the next section. The 
role of its Cabinet will be to ensure that resources and 
arrangements are in place to discharge those accountable 
body responsibilities. It will be the senior decision making 
body within the Council with regard to the Town Deal, 
though it may chose to delegate decisions for example to 
the Programme Board (through its Chair). Decisions taken 
by Cabinet will be subject to scrutiny through the existing 
CBC scrutiny process. 

CBC Finance and Performance 
Board 

CBC Finance and Performance Board includes senior officer 
representation (including s. 151 officer) together with the 
Leader and Deputy Leader. It provides a further line of 
assurance within the council with regard to the managing 
of public money as the Town Deal programme forms part of 
the council’s wider Capital Programme. It will provide a 
route for escalation of programme management issues and 
risks within the council where these cannot be managed or 
mitigated by the Programme Board. Since the meeting is 
not a public meeting with formal minutes, Town Deal 
decisions made would require a formal minute to be taken.  

Town Deal Programme Board The Town Deal Programme Board is a CBC officer group 
established to provide oversight of the programme delivery 
on behalf of the accountable body. It includes the CBC s. 
151 officer who, together with the Chief Executive, will be 
required to provide formal assurance to government on 
behalf of the council as the accountable body. The Board is 
run in line with the wider project and programme 
methodologies in place within the council. It will report 
internally within CBC and will also provide regular updates 

Page 33



   
 

6 
 

and reports directly to the Staveley Town Deal Board. The 
Terms of Reference for the Programme Board are included 
at Appendix two. 

Town Deal Programme Team The team has been established in order to provide the 
dedicated resources required to manage the programme 
and ensure the council can fulfil its role as the Accountable 
Body. It includes a programme manager with day to day 
responsibility for the delivery of the Deal. The team will 
also provide secretariat support to the Staveley Town Deal 
Board.  

Project sponsor group The project sponsor group is not a decision making body 
but a critical liaison group within the overall governance 
structure. It brings together the nominated lead officer 
from within each of the organisations responsible for 
sponsoring the individual projects that make up the Town 
Deal. It provides an opportunity for the programme team to 
give information, set out programme management 
requirements and consider support requirements. 

MHCLG MHCLG is the lead government department for the Towns 
Fund. A representative from the Cities and Local Growth 
Unit is invited to attend all meetings of the Staveley Town 
Deal Board. CBC as the accountable body will provide 
regular reports to MHCLG on implementation of the Town 
Deal. 

Towns Fund Delivery Partner The Towns Fund Delivery Partner has been appointed by 
government to support all towns in their work to develop 
Town Deals. A representative from the TFDP is invited to all 
meetings of the Staveley Town Deal Board. The TFDP will 
also provide advice and support directly to both the 
Programme Team and to Project sponsors – individually 
and collectively – for the duration of its contract with 
MHCLG. 

 

Accountable body role 

Through the structures set out above and processes outlined later in this framework, CBC as the 

Accountable Body for the Towns Fund will be required to: 

• Develop a delivery team, delivery arrangements and agreements  

• Ensure decisions made by the board are made in accordance with good governance 

principles and uphold the Nolan Principles 

• Ensure transparency requirements are met through publication of information on-line 

and that all information gathered for and relating to the Town Deal programme is 

handled and stored appropriately 

Page 34



   
 

7 
 

• Undertake any necessary studies at programme level such as Environmental Impact 

Assessments  

• Ensure that Public Sector Equalities Duties are met and that a programme level 

assessment is carried out 

• Ensure that full business cases are developed for projects  

• Put in place a local assurance mechanism and through this determine project business 

case compliance with the Treasury Green Book guidance 

• Agree and Sign the Heads of Terms Agreement with government  

• Contract with each project sponsor once funding is confirmed and manage those 

contracts/agreements, ensuring that funds are used in accordance with conditions set 

out in funding agreements 

• Work with partners to support the delivery of projects and manage project and 

programme risk 

• Monitor and evaluate the delivery of individual projects  

• Submit regular monitoring reports on all Town Deal projects to government in line with 

its Monitoring and Evaluation requirements  

• Receive and account for Towns Fund monies 

• Ensure compliance with regulations and guidance on managing public money 

• Putting in place appropriate arrangements for programme and project audit  

• Ensure sound governance throughout the above roles, and in particular that decisions 

made regarding the Staveley Town Deal conform with legal requirements with regard to 

equalities, social value, environment, Subsidy Control, procurement etc. 

  

Page 35



   
 

8 
 

3. Policies and Procedures 

 

Those parts of the Town Deal governance structure that are new or existing Chesterfield 

Borough Council bodies or groups will be bound by the council’s policies and procedures already 

in place. The Staveley Town Deal Board has a terms of reference (at appendix one) that sets out 

expectations of Board members with regard to conduct and managing conflicts of interest. 

Where explicit policies and procedures are not provided for the Board in this framework or its 

terms of reference, it will revert to the relevant CBC policy or procedure if an explicit policy or 

procedure is required. Section 9 of this framework includes more information with regard to 

policies for publishing information and management of data. 

Diversity statement 

It is important that the Town Deal process is one that demonstrates leadership with regard to 

diversity, equality and inclusion. The Staveley Town Deal Board has therefore developed a 

diversity statement setting out its commitment to diverse representation and engagement, how 

it will seek compliance with the Public Sector Equality Duties and the steps it will take to drive 

greater inclusion in the Staveley area through the Town Deal. This includes the development and 

regular review of an Equalities Impact Assessment for the programme. The statement is at 

appendix 3. 

  

Page 36



   
 

9 
 

4. Project selection, appraisal and approval 

The key processes requiring decisions by different parts of the Town Deal governance are set out 

in the following sections. These can be summarised as follows. 

 

 

 

A. Town Investment Plan and project selection 

The process for selecting projects to form part of the Staveley Town Deal is summarised in the 

Town Investment Plan (Dec 2020) with more detail set out in the Town Investment Plan 

Appendix. The project selection was overseen by the Staveley Town Deal Board, which signed off 

the final set of projects that comprised the Town Investment Plan (TIP). The TIP was also 

endorsed by the CBC Cabinet in December 2020. 

B. Heads of Terms agreement and project confirmation 

The Heads of Terms setting out the Staveley Town Deal was signed by both the Chairman of the 

Staveley Town Deal Board and the Chief Executive of Chesterfield Borough Council as the 

Accountable Body following approval by the Staveley Town Deal Board at its March 2021 

meeting. At the same meeting, the Board approved progressing all Town Deal projects to the 

business case development stage, confirming this in its return to government made two months 

after Heads of Terms (May 2021). 

C. Developing full business cases for each Town Deal project 

The Staveley Town Deal Board will oversee the process for development of full business cases by 

each project sponsor. It will be asked to agree proposals for the process and receive regular 

reports on progress being made against the approved process. 

Page 37



   
 

10 
 

As the Accountable Body, Chesterfield Borough Council will be responsible for developing a 

process for business case development that it is in keeping with this assurance framework and 

the wider considerations of managing public money. It will need to ensure that resources are in 

place to support the process and bring to the attention of the Staveley Town Deal Board any 

risks regarding a lack of process compliance. 

Projects sponsor organisations are responsible for developing the business case for their 

project(s) and ensuring that resources are in place to do so. Where additional support or 

resources are required they should be bring this to the attention of the programme team at the 

earliest opportunity. 

Each project sponsor organisation will be responsible for allocating a named lead officer who will 

be responsible for liaising with the programme team regarding the development of the project 

business case. Project sponsor organisations may also wish to identify a senior responsible 

officer within their organisation in addition to the lead contact point; this will depend on their 

internal governance arrangements. The lead officer will be responsible for providing the 

programme team with regular progress updates and for attending meetings of the project 

sponsor group.  

The Town Deal programme team will be responsible for coordinating the business case 

development process, for providing direct support to project sponsor organisations and enabling 

further support from external parties and through any available capacity funding. It will also be 

responsible for regular reporting to the Town Deal Programme Board and the Staveley Town 

Deal Board on the progress being made towards development of full business cases for each 

project. 

Where CBC is the sponsor for a project, it will maintain a clear internal separation between the 

roles of programme management and project sponsorship during the development of business 

cases. 

D. Business case appraisal 

Prior to formal appraisal of full business cases, each project sponsor organisation will develop a 

draft case that will be subject to one or more of the following: 

• informal review by the Town Deal Programme Team 

• review by the Town Deal Programme Board 

• review by the Towns Fund Delivery Partner including the use of subject matter experts 

where specialist input is sought 

• a check and challenge session from a small panel drawn from the Staveley Town Deal 

Board member organisations 

Each of the above will be designed to consider how the draft case can be strengthened in line 

with Towns Fund requirements and in order to increase the prospects of HMT Green Book 

Page 38



   
 

11 
 

compliance. It will be up to each project sponsor to determine which review mechanisms they 

wish to use and, subject to resources, they may choose to utilise all of the above. 

A template for business cases will be issued by the Town Deal Programme Team, based on the 

template provided by the Towns Fund Delivery Partner and in line with HMT Green Book 

requirements. Project sponsor organisations do not have to use the template for developing 

their business case; however, the template will be used as a checklist to determine the strength 

of draft cases, to inform the review processes outlined above and in conducting the external 

assurance described below. 

The template includes a proportionality guide. Each project sponsor organisation will liaise with 

the Town Deal Programme Team and agree through the Town Deal Programme Board how this 

guide will apply to each project business case. This will ensure an appropriate level of detail in 

each business case, proportionate to the risk, size of project, impact, financial exposure etc. The 

template also requests details of how each project will contribute to the Town Deal themes of 

clean growth and digital. Project sponsor organisations must consider ways in which projects can 

deliver against these themes as part of the business case. 

Following review of draft cases, project sponsors will amend business cases and submit a final 

full business case to the Town Deal Programme Team. The full business case will then be subject 

to external and independent appraisal through a suitably qualified body as appointed by CBC as 

the Accountable Body following an appropriate procurement process. Independent advice on 

subsidy control (formerly State Aid) will be obtained by CBC for all relevant projects. 

At Full Business Case stage, projects will be expected to provide: 

- Details confirming that all planning consents have been granted and that all pre-start 

conditions have been met 

- Confirmation of the results of any procurement exercises detailing: the tenders received 

(along with the detailed costs) and the tender accepted (along with timescales/ 

conditions) 

- Confirmation that the promoter will be responsible for any variations to the contract 

price and that once entered, the contract will be completed in line with the details 

submitted. The promoter should submit a separate letter appended to the Business Case 

which confirms this from their Financial Director or equivalent 

- Confirmation that the project has been designed to RIBA Stage 4 or its equivalent 

- Confirmation that all funding is in place with details of the sources of funding, including 

letters from third party funders confirming any conditions and timescales. 

- Confirmation that all land/ legal agreements have been completed and are in the control 

of the promoter to deliver the entire project 

Page 39



   
 

12 
 

Recognising that some of the above milestones may not be achievable within the time and 

resources available to project sponsors, conditional approval (see below) may still be given for 

Full Business Cases where some of the above requirements remain outstanding. However, this 

will only be the case where the business case is able to provide confidence as to how and when 

those conditions will be met within the project timeline and resources. 

Upon submission of a full business case, the external assurance will be undertaken within 10 

working days, unless there are extenuating circumstances, and a report submitted to CBC as the 

Accountable Body outlining the level of compliance with HMT Green Book and Towns Fund 

requirements. Where there are significant concerns regarding compliance indicated by the 

external body, the Town Deal Programme Team will take further advice from the external body 

and liaise with the project sponsor to consider whether it is possible to revise the case to achieve 

compliance and/or whether approval subject to certain conditions may be appropriate. A 

revision to a business case will only be possible where there remains sufficient time within the 

overall Town Deal programme and where there is sufficient confidence from the Programme 

Team and project sponsor that a revised case can still meet the objectives of the Town 

Investment Plan and comply with Towns Fund requirements. 

Once a report has been received following external business case assurance, the Town Deal 

Programme Board will meet to consider whether or not to recommend the business case for 

approval and what, if any, conditions should be placed on that approval. CBC Cabinet has 

delegated authority to the Town Deal Programme Board to consider full business cases on behalf 

of the Accountable Body and make recommendations for approval. The Town Deal Programme 

Board may either recommend a case for approval or, where it has concerns that require further 

discussion, bring the case to the council’s Finance and Performance Board for consideration. 

Where the project under consideration is sponsored by CBC, officers acting as project sponsors 

will not take part in the above discussions and decision making. 

Once a decision has been made by either the Town Deal Programme Board or the Finance and 

Performance Board, a report will come to the Staveley Town Deal Board with a recommendation 

to either approve the full business case as compliant with Towns Fund requirements or to reject 

the project from the Town Deal programme as non-compliant. The recommendation may 

include conditions that are placed on the approval and will need to be met by the project 

sponsor organisation in order to secure part or all of the project funding. The Staveley Town Deal 

Board will then make a decision based on the recommendation. 

Four outcomes may result from this process: 

a) For cases that are recommended for approval by the Town Deal Programme Board and 

approved by the Staveley Town Deal Board, the summary document required by 

government will be signed by the Staveley Town Deal Board Chair and the CBC Chief 

Executive and submitted.  

b) For cases that are recommended for approval by the Town Deal Programme Board but 

not approved by the Staveley Town Deal Board, the Chair will meet with the project 

Page 40



   
 

13 
 

sponsor organisation to advise it of the reasons for not approving the business case. The 

project sponsor organisation will have an opportunity to address those reasons and, if 

they wish, to request that the Staveley Town Deal Board formally re-consider its decision 

in light of its response to the reasons provided for non-approval. If the Staveley Town 

Deal Board remain of the view that the project is non-compliant, then the project 

sponsor organisation will receive confirmation of the withdrawal of the project from the 

Town Deal programme. The Staveley Town Deal Board will commission the Town Deal 

Programme Team to consider options for utilising the programme funding that becomes 

available. If the Staveley Town Deal Board reconsider and approve the business case, the 

summary document required by government will be signed by the Staveley Town Deal 

Board Chair and the CBC Chief Executive and submitted. 

c) For cases that are not recommended for approval by the Town Deal Programme Board 

and where the Staveley Town Deal Board agree the project is non-compliant, the project 

sponsor organisation will be notified of the withdrawal of the project from the Town Deal 

programme. The Staveley Town Deal Board will commission the Town Deal Programme 

Team to consider options for utilising the programme funding that becomes available. 

d) For cases that are not recommended for approval by the Town Deal Programme Board 

and where the Staveley Town Deal Board wish to approve the project, the Staveley Town 

Deal Board can request that the Town Deal Programme Board reconsider its 

recommendation. This will be possible only where the Staveley Town Deal Board is able 

to provide a clear rationale – including any additional information not considered by the 

Town Deal Programme Board – for its view that the project should be deemed compliant. 

In doing so, the Staveley Town Deal Board may seek advice directly from the external 

body appointed to carry out business case assurance. The Town Deal Programme Board 

will then reconsider its recommendation in light of the request from the Staveley Town 

Deal Board and any further information provided. In doing so it may seek further advice 

from the Finance and Performance Board in order to come to a definitive view as the 

Accountable Body. Following reconsideration, the Town Deal Programme Board will 

submit a further report to the Staveley Town Deal Board. If this recommends the 

business case for approval, then once approved by the Staveley Town Deal Board, the 

summary document required by government will be signed by the Staveley Town Deal 

Board Chair and the CBC Chief Executive and submitted. If the report does not 

recommend the case for approval, the Staveley Town Deal Board will note the outcome 

of its request for reconsideration. The project sponsor organisation will receive 

confirmation of the withdrawal of the project from the Town Deal programme. The 

Staveley Town Deal Board will commission the Town Deal Programme Team to consider 

options for utilising the programme funding that becomes available. 

The steps above will ensure that projects will only be submitted for government approval with 

the approval of both the Staveley Town Deal Board and CBC as the Accountable Body. The 

diagram below summarises the decision making within the process above. 

Page 41



   
 

14 
 

 

 

 

Where the Staveley Town Deal Board agree that a project can be considered as a fast-track 

project as set out in government guidance, it may opt to forgo the external business case 

assurance in order to expedite the process and the draft business case stage will not be required. 

However, this will only be the case where it considers that the project value and risk is relatively 

low, and where the project sponsor is not the Accountable Body. In this case, the assurance will 

be carried out by the Accountable Body and recommendations on approval made in line with the 

process above. 

E. Delivery of Town Deal projects 

Once projects have been approved through the above process, funding will be made available to 

CBC in line with the profile set out in the business case for each project. Project sponsor 

organisations will then be responsible for delivery of each project in line with the full business 

case. In particular, they will be responsible for ensuring: 

• Delivery of project milestones in line with the business case 

• Procurement is carried out in line with Towns Fund requirements 

• Finances are soundly managed and claims submitted to CBC in a timely and accurate 

manner 

• Project outputs and outcomes are accurately monitored and recorded. 

• Risks are actively managed and recorded on the project risk register. 

Project sponsor organisations will liaise with the Town Deal Programme Team on a regular basis 

and submit all information required in a timely manner to allow for effective management of the 

programme. 

The Staveley Town Deal Board will continue to provide oversight through the delivery phase of 

the programme. It will receive regular highlight reports on delivery with key risks and issues 

noted. It may invite project sponsor organisations to present on progress during the delivery 

phase and/or commission reviews where it has concerns regarding any delivery issues. 

Page 42



   
 

15 
 

The Town Deal Programme Team will be responsible for day to day programme management 

once delivery commences. It will liaise regularly with each project sponsor and ensure that 

reporting requirements are clearly set out and understood. It will endeavour to provide and/or 

enable support for project sponsor organisations where delivery is challenging. The team will 

provide monthly programme reporting to the Town Deal Programme Board with both highlight 

reports and, where commissioned, detailed project reviews. The regular reporting will include 

information at project and programme level on risk, finance, milestones and outputs. 

The Town Deal Programme Board will receive reports on project and programme delivery. It will 

be responsible for directing the ongoing programme management and making decisions 

regarding risk and project change. It will in turn produce highlight reports for the Finance and 

Performance Board and may seek advice from this Board where programme issues cannot be 

resolved. The Town Deal Programme Board is also responsible for the reporting to the Staveley 

Town Deal Board, ensuring this is accurate, timely and that key issues and risks are appropriately 

highlighted and escalated. 

F. Project Changes 

Changes to projects may be requested by project sponsor organisations and/or recommended 

by the Town Deal Programme Board or Staveley Town Deal Board. They may arise in response to 

unforeseen external circumstances, changes that affect the capacity or capabilities of the 

delivery organisation, or as part of risk mitigation. 

Where project changes are relatively minor with no bearing on the agreed project outputs set 

out in the Heads of Terms, these may be agreed directly between the project sponsor 

organisation and the Town Deal Programme Team and reported to the Town Deal Programme 

Board. 

Where project changes are more substantial and may have an impact on the delivery of the 

Heads of Terms, they will be brought to the Town Deal Programme Board for formal approval. 

They will be noted in the subsequent report to the Staveley Town Deal Board. Where changes 

can be quantified (e.g. spend or outputs), the Town Deal Programme Board will be able to 

approve up to 10% variation from the initial project plan. 

Where project changes are significant and are likely to have an impact on the delivery of the 

Heads of Terms and/or where variation is above 10% for quantifiable changes, they will be 

considered by the Town Deal Programme Board and advice sought from government prior to 

making a recommendation to the Staveley Town Deal Board. The Staveley Town Deal Board will 

then take a decision in light of the recommendation from the Town Deal Programme Board and 

the advice from government. Where further negotiation with government is required in light of a 

request for a project change, the Staveley Town Deal Board may delegate final approval to the 

Chair and Vice Chair.  

Page 43



   
 

16 
 

5. Risk and assurance 

Risk management is an important element of delivering the Staveley Town Deal. The approach 

will be to proactively manage risks, enabling the Staveley Town Deal Board and the Accountable 

Body to be well informed and ensuring that future challenges are promptly identified. Risk 

management is noted as one of the key pillars of good decision making and therefore a crucial 

element of good governance. The Staveley Town Deal Board will therefore keep the approach to 

risk management under regular review. 

The Town Deal Programme Board will be responsible for carrying out a programme delivery risk 

assessment and using this to generate a programme level risk register. It will hold both strategic 

and operational risks at the programme level. It will identify the lead individual to manage the 

risk, identify the controls or mitigation that needs to be in place to continually monitor the risk 

and set risk appetite for the target risk level being sought for each risk. This register will be 

maintained by the Town Deal Programme Team and reported on each month at the Town Deal 

Programme Board. The register will be reviewed each quarter by the Staveley Town Deal Board, 

in addition to project and programme risks being highlighted by exception as part of the regular 

programme reporting. The programme risk register will feed into the wider strategic risk register 

for CBC which is reviewed on a regular basis by its risk management group. 

Each project sponsor organisation will be responsible for maintaining an active project level risk 

register. This should be generated during development of the business case for the project and 

reviewed and updated on a regular basis. Each project sponsor organisation is expected to 

review its project risk register within its organisation as part of its own internal governance, 

though the form and frequency of that will depend on its own arrangements. Project risk will 

form part of the regular reporting that each project sponsor will need to submit to the Town 

Deal Programme Team. The team will then be responsible for reviewing the programme risk 

register in light of project risks. It will report to the Town Deal Programme Board each month on 

both project and programme risk and make recommendations for additional mitigations where 

risk levels are not in line with stated risk appetite. 

The Town Deal will use a model of four ‘lines of defence’ in order to provide assurance across 

the programme to government and to the communities of Staveley. The details of this are 

included in appendix four. In summary, the four lines will be: 

First line  Town Deal Programme Team working with project leads  

Second line  Town Deal Programme Board 

Third line  Staveley Town Deal Board and CBC Cabinet 

Fourth line  Internal Audit and Scrutiny (CBC) and external scrutiny including MHCLG 

  

Page 44



   
 

17 
 

6. Contract Management 

Once a project is approved, a funding agreement will be drafted by CBC and issued by the Town 

Deal Programme Team to the project sponsor organisation for its completion. The funding 

agreement between CBC and the project sponsor sets out the conditions relating to CBC’s 

agreement to fund the project and the responsibilities of CBC and the project sponsor. This will 

include any conditions for funding that are in place through either the requirements set by 

government in the Heads of Terms or in subsequent guidance, and/or conditions set by CBC or 

Staveley Town Deal Board as part of the process for approval of the project business case. 

The funding agreement will also confirm that the project sponsor organisation: 

• Bears the risk for all overspend on the project beyond the approved amount 

• Will be required to participate in a full and timely manner with any audit activity that is 

undertaken as part of the overall programme assurance 

• Will be required to participate in a full and timely manner with any external reviews 

undertaken by government (or commissioned by government) as part of its assurance of 

Towns Fund delivery and/or evaluation of the programme 

• Will maintain regular and timely reporting as set out in the monitoring and evaluation 

requirements outlined in the following section 

Any contractual issues relating to projects will be considered informally in the first instance 

through ongoing dialogue between the Town Deal Programme Team and the project sponsor. 

Where issues are unable to be resolved, they will be considered by the Town Deal Programme 

Board prior to any formal action being taken. Where necessary, CBC will seek external legal 

advice regarding significant contractual issues in the interests of fulfilling its role as the 

Accountable Body for the Towns Fund. 

As noted in a previous section, processes are in place to agree changes to projects. It is the 

responsibility of the Town Deal Programme Team to maintain overall change control and ensure 

any changes are recorded including the requisite level of approval obtained. 

Payment milestones will be agreed with the project sponsor organisations at the point of 

contract. The milestones will depend on the complexity, cost and timescales of the project. The 

claims and payment process will then be managed by the Town Deal Programme Team in liaison 

with each project sponsor. Arrangements for processing claims will be made in line with the 

council’s financial procedures and be subject to both internal and external audit. Where the 

project sponsor is the council itself, additional processes and checks will be put in place to 

ensure an appropriate separation of roles. 

Where projects have not delivered the contracted outputs, then clawback provisions within the 

funding agreement may be utilised to recover funding. In these circumstances, the Town Deal 

Programme Board would make a recommendation to the Finance and Performance Board in the 

first instance. Following a view from the Finance and Performance Board, the Town Deal 

Page 45



   
 

18 
 

Programme Board would set out its intended approach to recover funding for the Staveley Town 

Deal Board, allowing the latter to comment on this before any steps to recover funding were 

take by the council as the Accountable Body. 

 

  

Page 46



   
 

19 
 

7. Monitoring and Evaluation 

Government has issued guidance (April 2021) on the monitoring and evaluation requirements for 

the Town Deal. This requires local authorities to report twice a year on inputs, activities and 

outputs. MHCLG will lead on data collection relating to the outcomes and impact of Towns Fund 

interventions. Where data can be provided directly to government by CBC it will be; where data 

requires information from project sponsor organisations, this will be built into the local 

programme monitoring requirements to avoid duplication or unnecessary burdens for project 

sponsors.  The Town Deal Programme Team will be responsible for populating the twice-yearly 

returns to government; these will be signed off by the Town Deal Programme Board. The team 

will also oversee the process of gathering baseline monitoring information at the outset of the 

programme, working with project sponsor organisations to do so. 

The Town Deal Programme Team will develop local programme monitoring to inform the 

programme management activities and ensure that regular reports can be made to other groups 

within the governance structure, including the returns to central government. Once a local 

monitoring approach has been developed, this will be approved by the Town Deal Programme 

Board and the Staveley Town Deal Board. The Project Sponsor group will act as a key consultee 

with its views taken into account prior to finalising and implementing the approach.  

Once local programme monitoring is in place, project sponsor organisations will be responsible 

for reporting at the agreed frequency against all project data required and in accordance with 

the agreed data collection methodology to ensure consistency. This monitoring will allow the 

Town Deal Programme Board and the Staveley Town Deal Board to hold each project sponsor 

organisations to account for delivery against the activities, outputs, spend etc. set out in the final 

business case for the project. In turn, the Staveley Town Deal Board and CBC will be held to 

account by government for delivery against the outputs included within the Heads of Terms for 

the Staveley Town Deal.  

Project sponsor organisations will also be responsible for collaborating with government to assist 

its work on evaluation of the Towns Fund. Whilst this activity will be led by MHLCG, it will require 

local input and therefore local partners will need to contribute accordingly. This may include 

participating in any deep dive reviews that government chooses to conduct for the Staveley 

Deal. 

In addition to informing the evaluation activity to be conducted by government, the Staveley 

Town Deal Board will carry out its own review of Town Deal delivery during the lifetime of the 

programme. The Town Deal Programme Team will be responsible for presenting options for this 

review to the Town Deal Programme Board and Staveley Town Deal Board. 

  

Page 47



   
 

20 
 

8. Ways of working 

The creation of the Town Investment Plan for Staveley was notable for the engagement that 

took place and the wide involvement of stakeholders in the process. In moving to the 

development and delivery of projects, Town Deal partners are committed to continuing to work 

in an inclusive, collaborative and engaging manner. 

The Staveley Town Deal Board is responsible for ensuring this approach is taken throughout the 

development and delivery of the Town Deal programme. It may choose to set up specific sub-

groups or working groups to advise it and/or deliver specific approaches to engagement. 

The Town Deal Programme Team will also play a role in engaging more widely with the 

communities of Staveley and key stakeholders. It will include a dedicated post leading on this 

activity and working closely with project sponsor organisations. 

Each project sponsor organisation is expected to ensure that the ways of working embodied in 

the development of the Town Investment Plan are upheld in the work it carries out to develop 

and deliver its project(s). Plans for inclusive and collaborative engagement will need to be 

outlined within the full business case for each project and delivery of the agreed case will then 

be monitored through the ongoing programme management arrangements. 

Through the Towns Fund Delivery Partner, members of the Staveley Town Deal Board, Town 

Deal Programme Board and project sponsor organisations can join working groups that bring 

together Town Deal areas from across the country to collaborate on specific themes. Partners 

working on the Staveley Town Deal will be encouraged and supported to participate in these and 

other collaborative mechanisms to ensure that the area learns from practice elsewhere and can 

share its thinking and achievements with others. 

 

  

Page 48



   
 

21 
 

9. Communications and Transparency 

For the Town Deal to be successful and of greatest benefit to the communities of Staveley, it will 

be important to communicate effectively, accurately and regularly with stakeholders and the 

public. A Communications and Engagement Plan is already in place as part of the Town 

Investment Plan submitted in December 2020. Progress against this plan will be reviewed 

regularly by the Staveley Town Deal Board. 

Project sponsors will be asked to agree and follow a Communications Protocol that will ensure 

communication regarding Town Deal projects is coordinated and fulfils government expectations 

for branding and any other Towns Fund requirements. The Staveley Town Deal Board will be 

responsible for overseeing the implementation of the protocol and working with project sponsor 

organisations to ensure adherence to this. 

As set out in the Staveley Town Deal Board Terms of Reference, whilst the Board meetings are 

not public meetings, CBC will publish on its website copies of agendas and reports that are open 

to public inspection at least 5 clear working days before each board meeting, and copies of 

minutes of board meetings that are open to public inspection 5 clear working days after each 

board meeting. 

The Town Deal Programme Team will be responsible for maintaining the Staveley Town Deal 

website pages and ensuring information is kept up to date. It will also be responsible for 

ensuring any other digital channels are utilised effectively and contain accurate and timely 

information about the programme. 

The Town Deal Programme Board is an internal meeting of CBC officers and will not be a public 

meeting. Papers will be kept restricted to those attending the meetings, though (as noted below) 

any request for information under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 would be considered 

and responded to, subject to any relevant exemptions (for example due to commercial 

considerations).  

Data management and Freedom of Information. 

Town Deal programme activity will comply with the council’s Information Governance 

Framework which is aligned to requirements of the General Protection Data Regulation (GDPR) 

2015 and Data Protection Act 2018. Through the Town Deal Programme Team, the council will 

support the Board in dealing with any data protection questions and ensure that project sponsor 

activity is also conducted in line with information assurance requirements. The relevant council 

policies can be found here. 

The Freedom of Information Act 2000 will also apply and there should be prompt liaison with 

CBC over any request for information received to enable an appropriate response within 

statutory timescales and under the council’s procedures. 

  

Page 49

https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/your-council/your-chesterfield/data-protection-privacy-notice/data-protection-policy.aspx


   
 

22 
 

Appendix one -Terms of Reference for Staveley Town Deal Board 

 
STAVELEY TOWN DEAL BOARD 

Terms of Reference (January 2020) 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
Staveley is located in the east of Chesterfield borough and functions as the local service centre for 
a wider community parish with a population of almost 20,000 people. Traditionally dependent on 
coalmining and heavy industry for employment, Staveley’s economy has been through a difficult 
period of industrial restructuring, resulting in a legacy of large scale derelict industrial sites and 
high levels of deprivation in local communities. Over the last 10 years there has been significant 
new business investment at Markham Vale and the recent announcement that Staveley will be 
the location for an Infrastructure Maintenance Depot on the high speed rail network provides 
additional grounds for optimism about Staveley’s economic future.      
 
Staveley is one of the 100 towns included in the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local 
Government (MHCLG)’s Towns Fund, set up to address growth constraints and to deliver long term 
economic and productivity growth through: 

• Urban regeneration, planning and land use 

• Skills and enterprise infrastructure 

• Connectivity 
 
The Towns Fund provides an opportunity for Staveley to agree a Town Deal with MHCLG and 
thereby benefit from significant investment for growth. It is a requirement of the Towns Fund that 
Chesterfield Borough Council (CBC) develops and convenes a Town Deal Board.  
 
2. THE ROLE OF THE STAVELEY TOWN DEAL BOARD  
 
The Staveley Town Deal Board (“the Board”) is the vehicle through which the vision and strategy 
for the Staveley Town Deal is defined. 
 
The Board will: 
 
(i) develop and agree an evidence based Town Investment Plan that includes: 

• Background, context and evidence of need for suggested interventions 

• A vision for Staveley, complementing agreed or emerging local 
economic strategies 

• A high level description of priority areas for the short, medium and long 
term including: 

• Activity that can be locally funded 

• Projects that could be supported by public investment (including 

Page 50



   
 

23 
 

through the Towns Fund), with high level costs estimates 

• Ambitions for private sector investment and community 
Involvement 
 

(ii) Develop a clear programme of interventions 
 

(iii) Coordinate resources and influence stakeholders 
(iv) Provide an oversight role for projects delivered via the Staveley Town Deal.  
 
The area the Board will represent is the geographic area as shown on the map at Appendix A. 
 
The Board is not a legal entity, and its role is advisory. Its purpose is to work with Chesterfield 
Borough Council, to which it is accountable as the Lead Council, to produce a well evidenced Town 
Investment Plan which sets out a clear understanding of Staveley focusing on its assets, 
opportunities and challenges. It will subsequently assist in the production of business cases to 
access Town Deal funding. 
 
3. BOARD MEMBERSHIP 
 

1. The Board is made up of the following members (January 2020), comprising: 
 

Member Organisation 

Ivan Formin MSE Hillier 
Cllr Tricia Gilby Chesterfield Borough Council 

Cllr Paul Mann Staveley Town Council 

Mervyn Allcock, MBE Barrow Hill Engine Shed Society 

Cllr Tony King Derbyshire County Council 
Steve Johnson Derbyshire Police 

Warren Manning University of Derby 

Angela Stansfield Department of Work and Pensions 
Julie Richards Chesterfield College 

Ian Wingfield Springfield Community College 

Lee Rowley, MP MP, North East Derbyshire 

Toby Perkins, MP MP, Chesterfield 
Huw Bowen Chesterfield Borough Council 

Mark Potter Chesterfield Canal Trust 

 
 

2. Once appointed, the Chair will invite stakeholder organisations to confirm the 
nominations to represent them on the Board. Individual membership of the Board is 
dependent on the continuing support of the relevant nominating body. 

 

Page 51



   
 

24 
 

The Board will have the power at any time to invite further members if the Board considers it 
necessary. The Board will also ask for nominations and vote for a Vice Chair. In the absence of 
the Chair at any, meeting, the Vice Chair will chair the meeting. 

 

3. A Board member shall cease to be a member in the event of: 

• such member giving written notice to the Board of their resignation, to take effect on 
receipt by the Board of the notice of resignation or, if later, the date stated in the 
notice. 

• such member's death or, being a corporation, its winding up 

• such member's bankruptcy, making of any arrangement or composition with his 
creditors, or liquidation, or in the case of an organisation, winding up, liquidation, 
dissolution or administration or anything analogous to any of the foregoing occurring 
in relation to a member 

• such member ceasing to have an office or other base within Staveley or ceasing to be 
employed by such organisation as entitles them to be a member. 

 
All Board members must retire every three years but can be reappointed by their 
nominating body at the end of each three year period. 
 
Chesterfield Borough Council will provide administrative support to the Board. 

 
4. BOARD MEETINGS 

 

• The Board will meet 6 times per year in the first year of operation, with an 
expectation of meeting 4 times per year thereafter. 

• No business shall be transacted at any Board meeting unless a quorum is present. The 
quorum shall be eight and shall include CBC. 

• CBC will give at least 5 clear working days’ notice of all Board meetings, by publishing 
details on its website. 

• Board meetings will not be public meetings. 

• CBC will publish on its website copies of agendas and reports that are open to public 
inspection at least 5 clear working days before each board meeting, and copies of 
minutes of board meetings that are open to public inspection  5 clear working days after 
each board meeting. 

• CBC will invite MHCLG to send a representative to attend Board meetings as an observer. 
• Each Board member shall have one vote and decisions will be made on a show of hands. 

In the event of an equality of votes the Chair shall have a casting vote. 
 
5. BOARD MEMBERS’ CONDUCT 
 
Board members are expected to adhere to the Seven Principles of Public Life, known as the Nolan 
Principles, as defined by the Committee for Standards in Public Life. They are: 
 

Page 52



   
 

25 
 

• Selflessness: Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. 
They should not do so in order to gain financial or other benefits for themselves, their 
family or their friends. 

• Integrity: Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial or 
other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might seek to influence them 
in the performance of their official duties. 

• Objectivity: In carrying out public business, including making public appointments, 
awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards and benefits, holders of 
public office should make choices on merit. 

• Accountability: Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and actions to 
the public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their office. 

• Openness: Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all the decisions 
and actions that they take. They should give reasons for their decisions and restrict 
information only when the wider public interest clearly demands it. 

• Honesty: Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating to 
their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protects 
the public interest. 

• Leadership: Holders of public office should promote and support these principles by 
leadership and example. 

 
Conflicts of Interest 
 
CBC will maintain and publish on its website a Register of Board Member Interests. 
The following provisions shall apply to all Board members: 

• In the event that there is a conflict of interest the person so conflicted shall immediately 
declare the nature of the conflict or potential conflict and withdraw from any business 
where the conflict would be relevant. 
 

• Whenever a person has an interest in a matter to be discussed at a meeting the person 
concerned will not be: 

o entitled to remain present at the meeting during discussion of that matter 
o counted in the quorum for that part of the meeting 
o entitled to vote on the matter 

 

• The Board may, at any time authorise a person to remain in the meeting whilst a matter 
in which they have or may have a conflict of interest is discussed, provided that the 
conflict of interest is declared and the person subject to the conflict of interest shall not 
be entitled to vote on the matter. 

 
6. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
(i) The Chair 

Page 53



   
 

26 
 

The role of the Chair is to lead the Board in defining vision and direction, and in delivering 
the desired outputs, whilst ensuring that appropriate procedures for governance and 
management of resources are in place. 
 
The key responsibilities of the post are to: 

• Provide strategic leadership and direction to ensure that the Board achieves its goals 

• Lead the efforts of the Board to agree a Town Investment Plan for Staveley and business 
case funding 

• Effectively chair meetings of the Board, leading it towards decisions that ensure the 
strategic vision and key objectives of the Board are delivered. 

• Be an effective influencer and “ambassador” for Staveley at local, regional and national 
levels working with appropriate partner organisations and individuals 

• Be an effective advocate on behalf of the Board, CBC and the businesses and people of 
Staveley, in particular at conferences and events/meetings with Ministers, MPs and key 
civil servants 

• Reflect the agreed policies of the Board and its members in all discussions with partners, 
stakeholders, government and its agencies. 

• Ensure that the Board adheres at all times to high standards of ethics and governance in 
public life and is an exemplar to other organisations 

• Ensure that all Board members participate actively in the work of the Board, encouraging 
their attendance and engagement and keeping regular contact with all members 

• Exert a casting vote in Board decisions if circumstances so require 
 

(ii) Board Members 
Board members have a responsibility to uphold high standards of integrity and 
probity. They should support the Chair in instilling the appropriate culture, values and 
behaviours in the boardroom and beyond. 
Board members should take into account the views of other stakeholders, because these 
views may provide different perspectives on the Board and its performance. 
 
The duties and responsibilities of a Board member are to: 

• Attend meetings of the Board and to nominate an appropriate named alternative where 
attendance is not possible, subject to the prior agreement of the Chair and Lead Council 

• Reflect the agreed view of the Board and its members in all discussions with partners, 
stakeholders, government and its’ agencies  

• Support the Chair by leading on activities relevant to their knowledge and experience by 
representing the interests of the Board in meetings with partners, stakeholders, 
government and its’ agencies 

• Actively develop an effective partnership 

• Contribute knowledge and expertise to the development of the Town Investment Plan 
and business cases for funding 

• Formally represent the Board in meetings with other bodies and partner organisations as 
required 

  

Page 54



   
 

27 
 

Appendix Two – Terms of Reference for Town Deal Programme Board (CBC) 

 

1. Purpose 

The Town Deal Programme Board is a Chesterfield Borough Council officer group established to 

provide oversight of the Staveley Town Deal programme delivery on behalf of the accountable 

body (the borough council). It includes the council’s section 151 officer who, together with the 

Chief Executive, will be required to provide formal assurance to government on behalf of the 

council as the accountable body. The Board will be run in line with the wider project and 

programme methodologies in place within the council. It will report internally within CBC and 

will also provide regular updates and reports directly to the Staveley Town Deal Board. 

 

2. Membership 

Members of the Board are as follows:  

 

Service Director Economic Growth 

Service Director Finance and section 151 officer 

Property Procurement and Contracts Law Manager 

Communications and Marketing Manager 

Development Manager and Conservation Manager 

Strategic Planning and Key Sites Manager 

Economic Development Manager 

Staveley Town Deal Programme Manager 

 

Officers unable to attend will be encouraged to send a substitute attendee who will be expected 

to be briefed on the role of the Programme Board and its agenda. 

The Staveley Town Deal Assistant and Staveley Town Deal Engagement Officer will also be in 

attendance at meetings. 

 

The Board will be chaired by the Service Director Economic Growth who will act as the Senior 

Responsible Officer for the Towns Fund within CBC. Partner organisations, in particular project 

sponsors, may be invited to attend the Board for specific items. 

Page 55



   
 

28 
 

 

3. Meetings  

Meetings will be held on a monthly basis with timings set to align with the internal project and 

programme management cycle within CBC. The Town Deal Programme Team will provide the 

secretariat for the meetings, including preparation of agendas, circulation of papers and taking 

notes of the meetings. Papers will be circulated no later than three working days prior to each 

meeting. Meetings will be deemed quorate where at least half of the Board members are 

present and where either the section 151 officer or her nominated representative are in 

attendance. Where meetings are not quorate then discussions may take place but decisions will 

require formal approval at the next quorate meeting. 

 

4. Remit 

The remit of the Board will be two-fold. It will form part of the council’s structure for project and 

programme management with a remit in line with approved internal governance for this 

purpose. It will also form part of the governance for the Staveley Town Deal programme as set 

out in the Staveley Town Deal Assurance Framework. 

Through delegations to its Chair, the Board will have a number of decision making roles as 

outlined in the Assurance Framework. It will make recommendations to Staveley Town Deal 

Board regarding business case approval for Town Deal projects. Once projects are approved, it 

will be the lead decision making body on behalf of the borough council as the Accountable Body 

with regard to the management of the Town Deal programme.  

The Board will be responsible for ensuring there are adequate resources in place within the 

council to fulfil its role as the Accountable Body. It will be responsible for monitoring delivery as 

well as developing and actively managing the programme level risk register. 

Where issues require escalation within the council then it will raise these with the Finance and 

Performance Board. 

The Board will review the Assurance Framework on at least an annual basis and make 

recommendations for changes to the CBC Cabinet and Staveley Town Deal Board. 

The Board will ensure that appropriate arrangements are in place within the council for a 

separation of roles where the council is acting as the project sponsor. 

 

5. Reporting  

The Board will receive monthly programme reports from the Town Deal Programme Team. In 

turn, it will be responsible for ensuring regular reporting to the Staveley Town Deal Board, on a 

six monthly basis to Cabinet and annually to Full Council as part of the existing reporting on the 

Page 56



   
 

29 
 

council’s capital programme. The Board will also be responsible for approving returns to 

government prepared by the Town Deal Programme Team. 

The Board will ensure that reporting is clear, accurate and informative. It will ensure that 

highlights and escalations are appropriate targeted in order that the Boards to which it reports 

can take a strategic view at the programme level.  

The Board may wish to commission more in-depth reviews of projects where it has concerns or 

seeks additional assurance. This should be done in collaboration with the relevant project 

sponsor organisation. 

 

6. Code of conduct 

All members of the Board are CBC employees and therefore bound by the Employee Code of 

Conduct as set out in Part Five of the Council’s Constitution. 

 

7. Review 

The Board will be responsible for keeping its Terms of Reference under review as part of the 

annual review of the Staveley Town Deal Assurance Framework. 

  

Page 57

https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/media/562587/cbc-constitution-part-five-v22.pdf


   
 

30 
 

Appendix Three – Diversity statement 

This statement sets out the Staveley Town Deal Board’s commitment to advancing equality and 

celebrating diversity within the communities of the Staveley area. It builds on the wider 

principles by which the Board will operate as set out in its Terms of Reference. 

Our Commitment  

The vision for the Staveley Town Deal is 

A place to start, a place to stay, a place to grow 

We believe this vision should apply to all those who live, work, visit and wish to come to the 

Staveley area, regardless of their characteristics. The Town Investment Plan for Staveley, 

published in December 2020, will be used as a key tool to eliminate discrimination and promote 

equality, through empowering our communities and helping them to realise their full potential. 

The Board will adhere to the principles set out in the 2010 Equality Act in all of its activities as it 

develops and oversees delivery of the Staveley Town Deal. 

To realise this commitment, the Board will: 

• Put the needs of communities at the heart of delivery, embedding and mainstreaming 

equality into the Staveley Town Deal Programme.  

• Make sure that when taking decisions, it considers information and feedback from 

communities and the impact decisions may have on them.  

• Monitor, assess and evaluate the impact of its strategies, policies, programmes, projects 

and commissioning on equality. It will take mitigating action to minimise any adverse 

impacts on people who share a protected characteristic. 

• Be open, honest and transparent, publishing and ensuring easy access to equality 

information and outcomes. 

• Ensure that consultation and engagement is central to the development and delivery of 

the Town Deal, in line with its Communication and Engagement Plan. 

• Work in partnership with organisations across the Staveley area, including the voluntary 

sector and local businesses to promote, recognise and celebrate difference within the 

context of fairness and equality. 

• Work towards Board membership, including its sub-groups, which is representative of 

local communities. 

• Seek out and draw on best practice to continuously improve and strengthen its approach 

to equality and diversity in delivering the Town Deal programme. 

Assessment and training 

To support the above steps, an Equalities Impact Assessment will be developed and used as a 

tool to determine how well the Town Deal programme aligns with the Board’s commitment to 

equality and diversity. The Assessment will be carried out for the Town Deal programme as a 

Page 58



   
 

31 
 

whole, drawing on similar assessments made at the project level by individual project sponsor 

organisations. The Assessment will be reviewed regularly by the Board as the programme moves 

from development to delivery. 

The Board will ensure that its members have a good understanding of equality and diversity 

issues, in particular those facing the communities of Staveley. It will put in place any training, 

development or other learning opportunities it deems necessary for Board members and 

colleagues working on the Town Deal programme to support delivery of its commitment to 

equality and diversity. 

 

Scope 

We will work to deliver our commitments by tackling inequality arising out of:  

• Age  

• Disability  

• Gender re-assignment  

• Marital status and civil partnership  

• Pregnancy and maternity  

• Race  

• Religion and belief, including non-belief  

• Sex or gender  

• Sexual orientation  

• Other forms of disadvantage such as social and economic deprivation and health inequalities 

 

Review and monitoring 

The Board will regularly assess whether it is meeting its equality and diversity ambitions, and 

change those ambitions if necessary to ensure they are fit for purpose. The Equality Impact 

Assessment will provide a basis for monitoring the impact of the programme and the extent to 

which this has been positive for members of Staveley communities with protected 

characteristics. Consideration of equalities impact will also form part of the formal monitoring 

and evaluation approach set out in the Assurance Framework for the Town Deal. 

  

Page 59



   
 

32 
 

Appendix Four – lines of defence for assurance framework 

The following table describes the four lines of defence model used to provide assurance for the 

Staveley Town Deal. This approach will be kept under review as part of the annual review of the 

Assurance Framework. 

First line – programme team Second line – programme Board 

Lead responsibility 
 
Town Deal Programme Manager responsible 
for ensuring the programme team undertakes 
first line checks and that control mechanisms 
are in place and utilised. 

Lead responsibility 
 
Town Deal Programme Board Chair 
responsible for ensuring the Programme 
Board provides a sound second line with 
mechanisms in place to assess, control and 
mitigate risk and monitor programme 
delivery. 

Further roles 
 
Expectations of project sponsor organisations 
to be clearly set out and documented with 
regard to business case requirements, funding 
agreements, monitoring, financial claims and 
risk management. 
 

Further roles 
 
Programme Board members to play an active 
role in ensuring that the agenda and papers 
facilitate this second line role and allow for 
constructive challenge. Programme Team to 
ensure quality assurance of all documentation 
prior to circulation to the Programme Board. 
 

Sources of assurance 
 

• Project business cases (draft, full) 

• Project business cases external 
assurance 

• Legal advice  

• Project monitoring returns 

• Project risk registers 

• Programme plan and monthly 
programme report to Programme 
Board 

• Notes from bilateral meetings with 
project sponsors 

• Notes from Project sponsor group 
meetings 

• Risks and issues log 

• Quality assurance processes for 
documentation produced 

• Notes of team meetings 
 

Sources of assurance 
 

• Monthly programme board papers, 
minutes 

• Section 151 officer sign off 

• Programme risk register 

• Programme Equalities Impact 
Assessment and regular review of this 

• Controls in place for claims submission 
and payment process 

• Management of potential conflicts of 
interest, including where the council is 
a project sponsor 

• Sign off of returns to government and 
programme reports for Staveley Town 
Deal Board and CBC Cabinet 

• Review of Assurance Framework 
 

Page 60



   
 

33 
 

Third line – Town Deal Board and Cabinet Fourth line – audit and external scrutiny 
Lead responsibility 
 
Staveley Town Deal Board Chair responsible 
for ensuring the Town Deal Board provides 
appropriate oversight and further assurance 
with mechanisms in place to assess, control 
and mitigate risk and monitor programme 
delivery. Council Leader responsible for 
ensuring that Cabinet has put in place 
sufficient resources and controls for the 
council to fulfil the Accountable Body role. 

Lead responsibility 
 
Internal audit (and external audit where 
required) to assess the effectiveness of the 
first three lines of assurance, providing an 
independent and objective opinion on the 
framework of governance and making 
recommendations for improvement. External 
scrutiny from MHCLG as the lead government 
department in line with funding 
requirements, guidance and the Heads of 
Terms for the Staveley Town Deal. 

Further roles 
 
Staveley Town Deal Board and CBC Cabinet 
members to embody good governance 
through providing appropriate challenge and 
oversight in line with the respective roles set 
out in the Assurance Framework. Town Deal 
Programme Board to ensure quality 
assurance of all documentation prior to 
circulation to the Town Deal Board/Cabinet. 

Further roles 
 
All partners to engage fully and in a timely 
way with audit and external scrutiny/requests 
from government. Recommendations for 
improvement to be considered at the earliest 
opportunity by the Staveley Town Deal Board 
and the Accountable Body. 

Sources of assurance 
 

• Staveley Town Deal Board papers and 
minutes 

• Board and Chair sign-off 

• Board representations made to 
government and/or the Accountable 
Body 

• Review of the programme risk 
register, the Assurance Framework 
and the Equalities Impact Assessment  

• Management of potential conflicts of 
interest 

• Cabinet papers and minutes 

• Leader sign off 
 

Sources of assurance 
 

• Internal audits 

• Consideration of audit reports and 
recommendations by the Staveley 
Town Deal Board and Accountable 
Body 

• Compliance with audit 
recommendations 

• MHCLG reviews of governance 

• MHCLG monitoring and evaluation of 
programme delivery 

• MHCLG sign-off 

 

 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



       1 

Chesterfield Borough Council Equality Impact Assessment - Full Assessment Form 
 

 

Title of the policy, project, service, function or strategy: Staveley Town Deal (Overarching project EIA) March 
2021 

Service Area: Economic Growth  

Section: Economic Growth 

Lead Officer: Lindsay Wetton 

Date of assessment: March 2021 

Is the policy, project, service, function or strategy:  

Existing  

Changed  

New / Proposed x 

 
 
Section 1 – Clear aims and objectives 

 

1. What is the aim of the policy, project, service, function or strategy? 
 
Staveley Town Deal is part of the Government’s “levelling up” plans and is one of 101 towns in England set to receive £25m over a 
five year programme of delivery. A Town investment Plan (TIP) was submitted to Government in December 2020, and confirmation 
of the £25.2m for Staveley was given in the 3 March 2021 Budget. 
 
This means the Council and partners are able to proceed with all 11 projects proposed in the TIP. Equalities and Engagement are 
key to the success of this programme and we must interlink all the wider projects, initiatives and regeneration activity into the work of 
the Town Deal to maximise opportunities for the community around jobs, skills, connectivity and a sense of ‘Place’. 

 

 

2. Who is intended to benefit from the policy and how? 
The Programme aims to regenerate Staveley (5 towns/villages within the parish). Principally the existing local community will benefit, 
but with over 3000 news homes planned to be built, new communities will be established with different needs and demographics. 

P
age 63

kearseyc_1
Typewriter
Appendix 2



       2 

Investment from national and regionally significant regeneration and infrastructure projects will also change Staveley such as HS2, 
Staveley Corridor and new Rail line (for which the Rail Station is within the TIP). 
 
Currently 11 projects make up the TIP, aimed to interlink as much as possible and address the range of objectives:  
 

 
 
Chesterfield Borough Council has overarching responsibility for the Staveley Town Deal Programme, however, different partner 
organisations will be leading on the 11 projects within the programme.   The scope of this EIA is for the overarching aims of the 
programme, as the projects will require individual EIAs as they are developed.  They include: 

• Town centre (CBC) 

• Staveley Hall 

• Town Basin 

• Canal Restoration 

• Barrow Hill Memorial Hall 

• DRIIVe (CBC) 

P
age 64



       3 

• Hartington Works 

• Construction Skills Hub (CBC) 

• Staveley Station 

• Staveley Minors Welfare FC 

• Wheels to Work 
 

The EIAs will be reviewed at regular intervals and at key stages in the development of the programme.  In addition to the 11 projects, 
there are a number of activities which will be included in this overarching EIA: 
Accelerator Fund Projects (delivered by March 2021) 

• King George V Playing Field (new play equipment) supporting children of all ages, abilities/disabilities and an outdoor gym for 
adult use – supporting health, wellbeing and fitness 

• CCTV - new and improved CCTV across the Staveley Town Deal area – crime reduction and community safety 

• Staveley Miners Welfare Football Club – (new drainage for football pitches on Chantry Lane) – supporting football facilities for 
year-round activity. A girls and boys teams promotion programme to increase engagement and health and wellbeing. 

• DRIIVe – Derbyshire Rail Industry Innovation Vehicle - site purchase and investigation – long term benefits of higher level 
skills, employment and rail innovation enterprise opportunities, with the aim of providing these opportunities to Staveley 
residents 

• Springwell Community College 3G sports pitch (to commence later in Winter 2021) 
 

Projects and Activities developed outside the Town Deal, but as a direct result of consultation: 

• Nursery play equipment at Speedwell Infants School – sponsored by Fortem (£6K funding support) 

• Chesterfield College and Speedwell Infant School – in a digital skills support helpline providing parents with assistance and 
students with work experience 

 

 

 

3. What outcomes do you want to achieve?  
Staveley is a former mining town which has some challenges of a post-industrial community but one boasting fantastic potential 
which, if realised, can be transformational for the existing residents and newcomers into the area. Staveley wants to take the 
opportunity to: 
 
• Improve health and wellbeing through an enhanced green setting and heritage offer with multiple options for staying local. 
• Create innovation and enterprise momentum through opening employment sites and bringing new high quality jobs. 
• Promote inclusive growth through creating a sense of place and a 21st century offer which retains income in the area, bringing 

P
age 65



       4 

further enterprise and jobs for an upskilled and connected community. 
• Develop vibrant places to enjoy, meet and spend time, so visitors have a reason to come and new homeowners enrich the 
growing community 
 
Below is the schedule of expected outputs and outcomes for each project. It includes a range of land and site development, public 
realm and recreation site development and Skills and Employment opportunities. Facilities and services will be designed and 
developed for all users  
 
We want facilities to be accessible for all. Each project will produce a specific EIA to consider equalities impacts within their project 
as part of their Business Case. As these are produced, this overarching Programme level EIA will be updated. 
 
 

Project  Expected outputs and outcomes 

DRIIVe 
The development of a modern rail innovation 
and training centre adjacent to the iconic 
Barrow Hill Roundhouse. 

• Classroom/digital labs created: 552 sqm 
• Apprentice workshops/training workshops created: 1,506 sqm 

• Quality office space created: 484 sqm 
• Fully equipped digital lab designed to UKRIN standards 

• Training running through level 2 to level 7 to include rail engineering, green 
technologies, energy optimisation, smart maintenance and digital 

Hartington 
Industrial Park 
The redevelopment of the former Hartington 
Works site which is currently undergoing 
significant land reclamation works 

• Remediation of 20ha site for quality commercial space 
• 8.5 ha of land remediated for natural habitat 

• c70,000 sqm of land for B2/B8 use 
• Land value uplift of £10m through site remediation 

Construction 
Skills Hub 
The creation of a construction training hub that 
will serve to develop a pipeline of skilled 
workers locally through a complete pathway of 
onsite training interventions from entry through 
to higher level 

• 250 sq m facility provided on site to  support learners 
• 100% of learners to have on-site experience and direct contact with developer 
and sub contractors 
• New on-site provision for school taster sessions (up to 100 p.a.) and work 
experience (150) 
• Link installed to Chesterfield College Digital Skills Centre 

• Number of new learners assisted:410pa by year 4 of operation 
Staveley Miners 
Welfare FC Skills  
Academy 
This project would offer an elite football training 
programme through a BTEC in sport education 
course 

• Extension to clubhouse – 400 sqm 
• Learners in Year 1- 10; Year 2- 20; Year 3- 30 

• Upgrade of Chantry Fields car park - 150sqm 

P
age 66



       5 

Staveley Station at Barrow Hill 
This project is part of a wider 
proposal to re-open the Barrow 
Hill Line to allow passenger 
services to use the current 
freight route between the 
Sheffield Worksop-Lincoln 
Line and the Midland Main 
Line. 

• 1 station including 2 x 100m platforms, 150 space car park 
• 20km of line reinstated for passenger use 
• 1 secure cycle storage unit at eastbound platform 

• Connectivity to station building and wi-fi enabled 
• Journey time to Sheffield reduced to 31mins 
compared with 31- 36 mins car and 70 – 94 for bus 

Wheels to Work Staveley Hub 
The Wheels to Work Hub 
provides a local mobility facility 
with a specific focus on access 
to employment and training 
opportunities for people for whom 
mobility might otherwise be a 
barrier 

• 80 sq m Wheels to Work Hub in prominent town centre location 
• 6 electric vehicles and 3 charging points 

• 10 e-bikes and 5 scooters 

Staveley 21 
Staveley 21 is a programme to 
bring the town centre area into 
the 21st century, ensuring it 
becomes a  valued place to 
visit, shop, work and relax for the 
local community. 

• 3086 sq m of new retail and commercial space • 10,600 sq m of public realm 
enhancement including provision for services such as power and digital for new 
market stalls 
• Two enhanced walking and cycling routes from town centre to canal, 400m of 
upgraded path  

• Bringing cinema back into use, 438 sq m 
• 70 Jobs created 

Staveley 
Waterside 
Staveley Waterside is the proposed first phase 
of a mixed 
business and residential development centred 
on 
Staveley’s town basin 

• Waterside café and retail – 600 sqm 
• Waterside café spill out space -100 sqm 

• Road connection to open up the site and connect it to Eckington Road - approx. 
length 180m 

• 50 jobs created 

Staveley Hall Conference 
Centre 
Staveley Hall Conference Centre is an 
extension to the historic Grade II listed 
Staveley all, creating a high-quality events 
venue. 

• 148 sq m of the new space available as additional catering 
or hospitality space  
• 298 sq m (both halls) available for training provider to deliver varied skills 
programmes 

• 31 FTE based on business case  
• £1m p.a. value to visitor economy 

Chesterfield Canal Restoration • Almost 3km of accessible towpath constructed or upgraded, suitable for walking 

P
age 67



       6 

The restoration of Chesterfield 
Canal will enhance access to the countryside to 
the North East 
of Staveley Town Centre, 
upgrading the poor-quality 
existing footpath (Cuckoo Way) 
into a new multi user trail 

and cycling 
• Restoration of 2.6km of canal plus bridges, aqueduct and lock  
• Rebuilding of the historic Staveley Puddlebank, a prominent 
landmark and heritage asset  
• 3km of increased connectivity in water-based habitat and 
foraging routes and creating or enhancing new habitats along the route of the canal 
• Uplift in visitor numbers by 20% and increased visitor spend at canal-side venues 
by 25% by year 3 

Barrow Hill 
Memorial Hall 
To mark the building’s centenary in 2024 the 
aim is to modernise the Memorial Hall as a 
community 
centre while continuing to honour its legacy and 
its past. 
  

• Total area of refurbished building: 1,170 sqm 

• Sports/youth Zone: 238 sqm 

• Work / skills space: 40 sqm 

• Early year's nursery: 55 sqm  

• Community café: 200 sqm 

•  Increase number of visitors by 10% 

• 15 jobs created 

  
 

 P
age 68



       7 

 

4. What barriers exist for both the Council and the groups/people with protected characteristics to enable these 
outcomes to be achieved? 
• Access to the support and services – both physical and digital, often related to limited access to transport, health inequalities 

and limited or no access to digital technology or the skills to access resources 

• Covid-19 social distancing arrangements are likely to impact on engagement activity in the earlier stages of the programme 
development.  

 

 

5. Any other relevant background information  
CBC will be Accountable Body for the Town Deal and lead Project Sponsor for three of the projects: DRIIVe, Town Centre 
Masterplan and Regeneration and Construction Skills Hub. 
 

• The Town Deal has a website with all relevant information. The Town Investment Plan can also be viewed here:  
https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/business-and-economic-growth/regeneration-and-economic-growth/staveley-town-
deal/staveley-town-deal-news-and-information.aspx 

• Staveley Town Deal Stakeholder Engagement, Consultation, Communications Forward Plan 
 
The Town Board was established in January 2020 and is responsible for developing the vision, strategy 
and delivery, in consultation and collaboration with the stakeholders, community, businesses and investors.  
The Town Board shall have a Stakeholder Engagement, Consultation & Communications Sub Group who will be responsible for 
developing and overseeing delivery of the Engagement, consultation and communications Plan and reporting progress to the Town 
Board. This builds upon all the work to date and continues into 2021 and beyond.  The Plan demonstrates how the Town Investment 
Plan and its projects will continue to be: 
 
• Influenced and shaped by our stakeholders through existing engagement mechanisms and structures 
• Co-designed, based on evidenced need and buy-in 
• A complete package of projects, with complementarity and interdependencies that maximise deliverable outcomes and outputs 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 69

https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/business-and-economic-growth/regeneration-and-economic-growth/staveley-town-deal/staveley-town-deal-news-and-information.aspx
https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/business-and-economic-growth/regeneration-and-economic-growth/staveley-town-deal/staveley-town-deal-news-and-information.aspx


       8 

Section 2 – Collecting your information 

 

6. What existing data sources do you have to assess the impact of the policy, project, service, function or 
strategy? 
• Chesterfield Borough Council Local Plan, July 2020: https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/planning-

policy-and-the-local-plan/current-local-plan.aspx 

• Results on consultations relating to the Place Vision that formed the basis for the Town Investment Plan: 
https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/business-and-economic-growth/regeneration-and-economic-growth/staveley-town-
deal/staveley-town-deal-news-and-information.aspx 

• NOMIS as an evidence base of population statistics:  
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157135/report.aspx?town=staveley 
 

• Staveley Profile document: 

Staveley Profile and 

Map.pptx  

• As Chesterfield Borough Council are the Accountable Body for the Town Deal, all engagement activity will meet the Council’s 
established community engagement standards and strategy.   

• State of the Borough Report: https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/living-here/neighbourhoods/state-of-the-borough.aspx 
 

 

 
 
Section 3 – Additional engagement activities 

 

7. Please list any additional engagement activities undertaken when developing the proposal and completing this 
EIA. Have those who are anticipated to be affected by the policy been consulted with? 

Date Activity Main findings 
Ongoing A Communications and engagement 

Plan has been produced for the Staveley 
Town Deal Programme. It was submitted 
as part of the Town Investment Plan but 
will be a working documents and Action 

The aims are to promote the Programme (Town Deal) and each project shall 
build an Equality Impact Assessment into their business case, which will be 
assessed during the appraisal of the “Green Book” standard. Indeed an EIA is 
a requirement of the Town Deal within the Heads of Terms.  
 

P
age 70

https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/planning-policy-and-the-local-plan/current-local-plan.aspx
https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/planning-policy-and-the-local-plan/current-local-plan.aspx
https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/business-and-economic-growth/regeneration-and-economic-growth/staveley-town-deal/staveley-town-deal-news-and-information.aspx
https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/business-and-economic-growth/regeneration-and-economic-growth/staveley-town-deal/staveley-town-deal-news-and-information.aspx
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157135/report.aspx?town=staveley
https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/living-here/neighbourhoods/state-of-the-borough.aspx


       9 

Plan overseen by the Town Board 
through a Working Sub Group that shall 
include CBC Comms and Engagement 
staff. 

As with the EIAs, each project is also anticipated to require its own individual 
engagement activity. This EIA will include engagement activity relating to the 
overarching programme. 

09/2020 Consultation with stakeholders and the 
wider community about developing the 
‘Place Vision’ for Staveley Town Deal. 

131 responses were received during this consultation which was 
predominantly online due to the covid-19 restrictions. Responses were used 
to inform the development of the Place Vision.  The Place Vision formed part 
of the TIP which was submitted to the Government.  

 
 

P
age 71



       10 

Section 4 – What is the impact? 

 

8. Summary of anticipated impacts. Please tick at least one option per protected characteristic. Think about barriers people may 

experience in accessing services, how the policy is likely to affect the promotion of equality, knowledge of customer experiences to date. You 
may need to think about sub-groups within categories eg. older people, younger people, people with hearing impairment etc. 

 Positive impact Negative impact No disproportionate 
impact 

Age     

Disability and long term conditions    

Gender and gender reassignment    

Marriage and civil partnership    

Pregnant women and people on parental leave    

Sexual orientation    

Ethnicity    

Religion and belief    

 

9. Details of anticipated positive impacts.   

a)  Please provide details of any positive impacts identified in the summary table above and tick the group/s the impact applies to. Delete 
or add rows below as required.  
Younger people will positively benefit through improved access to skills and employment opportunities. 
The Town Deal aims to bring positive benefits to all the community with consultation across the 
programme and specific consultation for the town Centre masterplan to ensure any new developments 
support future needs of this community.  

xAge  Disability  Gender  Marriage  Pregnancy  Sexual orientation  Ethnicity  Religion  

b)   
One of the key characteristics of the current Staveley population is poor health and wellbeing. Project 
such as play and sports facility and green space improvements, linked with projects to promote active 
travel, much is planned to tackle the impact of health inequality. 
 
 Age xDisability  Gender  Marriage  Pregnancy  Sexual orientation  Ethnicity  Religion  

P
age 72



       11 

c)  The CCTV project is anticipated to reduce fear of crime and also incidences of crime.  It is hoped that this 
will have a positive impact on victims of hate crime and hate incidences.  
 
 
 Age  Disability  Gender  Marriage  Pregnancy  Sexual orientation  Ethnicity  Religion  

 
 
 

10. Details of anticipated negative impacts.   
 

a)  Negative impact: 
 

No negative impacts have been identified at this stage. 
 

Mitigating action:  

 Age  Disability  Gender  Marriage  Pregnancy  Sexual orientation  Ethnicity  Religion  

b)  Negative impact: 
 

 

Mitigating action:  

 Age  Disability  Gender  Marriage  Pregnancy  Sexual orientation  Ethnicity  Religion  

c)  Negative impact: 
 

 

Mitigating action:  

 Age  Disability  Gender  Marriage  Pregnancy  Sexual orientation  Ethnicity  Religion  

 
 

11. Have all negative impacts identified in the table above been mitigated against with appropriate 
action? 

 Yes  No x N/A If no, please explain why: 

 

P
age 73



       12 

Section 5 – Recommendations and monitoring 

 

12. How has the EIA helped to shape the policy, project, service, function or strategy or affected the 
recommendation or decision?  

A brief description of how the proposal has been developed to take into consideration protected groups, outcomes of consultation etc.  
The Town Deal is part of the Government plan to “level up” the economy and as such delivery, planning and implementation are driven by 
addressing the needs of the area and the communities, as well as stakeholders and designing opportunities for future investment and new 
people to live, work and set up businesses in Staveley. Much development work, research and consultation has taken place as part of the Place 
Visioning work and this goes back to work on the Local Plan. 
 
The Town Board shall oversee the projects as they develop and become established. 

 

 

13. How are you going to monitor the policy, project, service, function or strategy, how often and who will be 
responsible? 

The overall TIP, now submitted to Government will receive national scrutiny.  
 
An Assurance Framework, our Governance arrangements has been produced to ensure all aspect of the Town Deal delivery have been duly 
considered and robust monitoring and scrutiny are in place through the Accountable Body, an internal Officer Programme Board has been set 
up. Reports are presented to Council Committees and the Town Board also has responsibility monitoring delivery. Therefore there are clear 
levels of governance built into the Town Deal processes to ensure the Programme and equalities are delivered positively and negative issues 
mitigated. 
 
As we developed the TIP, local community had a range of methods to be consulted and stakeholders have been engaged. Continued 
consultation and engagement is planned throughout the programme. All this work shall be monitored, delivered and reviewed by our 
Communications, Engagement and Consultation (CEC) Working Group. Each of the 11 projects will be developing full businesses cases and a 
thorough equalities and diversity section will be required, in order that each project maximises positive impacts for target audiences and the 
wider community and links with other activity across the Borough (such as My Future skills portal for young people.  
 
This overarching EIA will be reviewed and updated at key points in the five year programme.  

 
 

Section 6 – Knowledge management and publication 

 

P
age 74



       13 

Please note the draft EIA should be reviewed by the appropriate Service Manager  and the Policy Service before 
WBR, Lead Member, Cabinet, Council reports are produced.  
 

Reviewed by Head of Service/Service Manager Name:  

Date: DD/MM/YY 

Reviewed by Policy Service  
 

Name:  

Date: DD/MM/YY 

Final version of the EIA sent to Policy Service   

Decision information sent to Policy Service   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 75



T
his page is intentionally left blank



For publication 

 

Review of the Member Development Policy (GV050) 

 

Meeting: 

 

Cabinet 

Date:  

 

25 May, 2021 

Cabinet 

portfolio: 

 

Governance 

Directorate: 

 

Corporate 

For publication  

 

 

1.0 Purpose of the report 

 

1.1 To approve the revised member development policy. 

 

2.0 Recommendations 

 

2.1 That the revised member development policy be approved and 

implemented with immediate effect. 

 

2.2 That a further review of the member development policy takes place after 

two years. 

 

3.0 Reason for recommendations 

 

3.1 To further develop and enhance our member development offer and to 

ensure the policy meets the changing needs of our elected members.  

 

4.0 Report details 

 

4.1 In recognition of the increasing expectations on our elected members, a 

review of member development was undertaken in 2017, beginning with 

the arrangements with the member development working group. The 

group was relaunched with new terms of reference that clarified 

responsibilities, powers, membership and support arrangements. Since 

2018, the group have continued to meet regularly and have been working 

Page 77

Agenda Item 7



to a clear range of objectives which are detailed in the Terms of Reference 

(Appendix 2). 

 

4.2 The group played a key role in supporting the development of the 

member induction programme following the borough elections in 2019. 

With such a large amount of training to deliver in a short space of time, 

the views and suggestions from current members were instrumental in 

creating an interesting and diverse induction programme that gave 

returning and new members the skills they needed to carry out their 

councillor duties.  

 

4.3 In March last year, the member development working group and 

democratic services team found new ways of innovating our member 

development offer so that it could continue virtually. From the start of the 

Covid-19 pandemic, members have received a weekly member e-bulletin 

which initially aimed to keep members up to date with the frequent 

changes to council services; as the restrictions have eased, the e-bulletin 

now spotlights training and development opportunities as well as 

important news from around the borough. Members can also access the 

council’s aspire learning platform where they can complete online courses 

on a wide variety of subjects. 

 

4.4 Following a short period of disruption to planned activities at the start of 

2020/21, member development sessions have moved into a virtual format 

which has seen attendance at the sessions increase significantly and 

receive positive feedback. There has been 72% attendance at the three 

virtual sessions during 2021, a 24% increase on a similar three sessions 

during 2019/20. Feedback from the three sessions this year has shown 

that 78% of members found them very useful and 15% found them useful. 

The support from the political groups has also been influential in 

increasing attendance and engagement with member development 

activities. Courses offered through other providers, such as East Midlands 

Councils or the Local Government Association, have moved online which 

has opened up more opportunities as members are no longer required to 

travel to distant locations to attend courses. 

 

4.5 The member development working group have oversight of the rolling 

member development plan. This plan contains the development sessions 

that are open to all members during the year. The plan is kept under 

constant review so that it can be flexible and reactive to changing needs 

such as the recent refresher data protection training in light of the 

increased use of remote means for communicating with council 

Page 78



employees and residents. The democratic services team are also working 

with the climate change officer to plan member development sessions in 

support of the climate change priorities. 

 

4.6 Individual requests for training are submitted using an application 

process; members are asked to fill in a form for any training request, 

regardless of whether it incurs expenses, to enable the member and civic 

support officer to keep an up to date record of member development. The 

form is quick and easy to complete and gives us some key information to 

consider the request including how the elected member, the council and 

the community will benefit from the course or event. The budget for 

member development is monitored by the member development working 

group. 

 

4.7 All this is brought together through the member development policy, 

attached at Appendix 1. The review of the policy has identified some 

minor changes such as updates to roles where job positions have 

changed, other changes are summarised below: 

 

i. Budget allocation – the policy has been updated to provide that 

50% of the budget will be ringfenced for training for all members 

through the rolling development plan and the remaining amount 

will be made available for individual requests. The budget 

allocations will be reviewed in December and funding may be 

transferred from one area to another if there has been an 

underspend. Previously, most of the budget has funded 

individual requests for training; however, due to Covid, two 

courses were procured to deliver specific training to prepare 

members for conducting council meetings remotely which 

required a significant portion of the budget. Therefore, the 

working group felt it was important to ringfence a portion of the 

budget in case a similar situation arose again.  

 

ii. Application form (Appendix 3) – the member and civic support 

officer will be responsible for receiving the application for 

training request form from the member and adding any further 

details such as alternative courses and budget costs. They will 

then send the form to the relevant group leader for approval. 

Individual groups are responsible for undertaking personal 

development reviews for their members against which 

applications for training can be assessed.  

 

Page 79



5.0 Alternative options 

 

5.1 The alternative option is to not approve the changes to the policy. If the 

ringfenced budget is not secured there is a risk that all the budget could 

be spent on individual requests and, should an urgent need arise for all 

member training, there would not be the funding within the budget to 

meet that need.  

 

6.0 Implications for consideration – Council Plan 

 

6.1 One of the policy’s key principles is “That learning and development will 

support the aims of the Council Plan and underpin our values.” The 

borough’s communities want the council to deliver high quality services, 

to be run and managed well and respond quickly and meaningfully to 

changing demands. The policy outlines how the council will support its 

elected members so that they can be successful in their roles.  

 

7.0 Implications for consideration – Financial and value for money 

 

7.1 A dedicated budget is available for member learning and development 

which is monitored by the member development working group.  

 

7.2 When requests for training from individual members are received, 

members are asked to demonstrate the value of attending the session 

and the member and civic support officer researches other course 

options to ensure the council is receiving value for money. 

 

8.0 Implications for consideration – Legal 

 

8.1 There are no legal implications for consideration. 

 

9.0 Implications for consideration – Human resources 

 

9.1 The policy is delivered by the member development working group with 

officer support from the democratic services team within the corporate 

directorate. The human resources – learning and development team also 

play a vital role in supporting and advising on learning and development 

opportunities and needs for elected members. 

 

10.0 Implications for consideration – Risk management 

 

Page 80



 

11.0 Implications for consideration – community wellbeing 

 

11.1 This policy supports community wellbeing by providing a training and 

development offer that ensures members have the necessary skills for 

their community leadership role. 

 

12.0 Implications for consideration – Economy and skills 

 

12.1 Economy and skills has been a key area of interest for member 

development. The democratic services team has worked with the Service 

Director Economic Growth to provide member briefing sessions and 

content for the member e-bulletin about key topics of interest on a 

regular basis and will continue to do so.  

 

13.0 Implications for consideration – Climate Change 

 

13.1 Virtual meeting technology has been used to allow training to take place 

remotely. Though this has primarily been due to the Covid-19 restrictions, 

it has significantly reduced the need to travel by vehicle for training 

sessions. Electronic feedback and application request forms are also used 

to reduce paper usage. 

 

13.2 The climate change officer is supporting the democratic services team to 

develop member development sessions on climate change which will be 

Description of the 

Risk 

Impact Likelihood Mitigating Action Impact Likelihood 

Lack of support in the 

member 

development policy 

from political groups. 

H M The member 

development 

group is politically 

balanced and the 

group has 

contributed to the 

review of the 

policy. Scrutiny 

members have also 

been consulted on 

the revised policy 

and comments 

have been fed into 

the review. 

M L 

Page 81



delivered during 2021/22 in support of the council’s climate change 

priorities. 

 

14.0 Implications for consideration – Equality and diversity 

 

14.1 The democratic services team provide reasonable adjustments to enable 

all members to access member development sessions, this is provided on 

an individual basis.  

 

14.2 The diverse needs of our communities are taken into account when 

planning our member development activity to ensure that our 

programme covers key equality, diversity and social inclusion issues and 

members are confident to support their communities on these issues. 

 

Decision information 

 

Key decision number Non-key 196 

Wards affected All wards 

 

Document information 

 

Report author 

Rachel Appleyard, Senior Democratic and Scrutiny Officer 

Corporate Directorate – Democratic Services 

 

Appendices to the report 

Appendix 1 Revised member development policy 

Appendix 2 Member development working group terms of reference 

Appendix 3 Application for member training 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 82



Appendix 1  

2021/22   

 

 

Member 

Development 

Policy  

 

 
Page 83



 
 

2 
 

Policy statement 
 

The expectations on elected members are higher than they have ever been. Our 

communities want their authority to deliver high quality services, to be run and managed 

well and respond quickly and meaningfully to changing demands. This means that elected 

members have to be effective in their roles – including governance, local representation, 

having detailed knowledge of relevant law and policy and be knowledgeable about the 

services we provide.  

To ensure that elected members are successful in their roles, training and development 

cannot be side-lined or treated as an optional activity. Every elected member has a 

responsibility to ensure their skills are regularly updated and the Council needs to 

effectively support them in achieving this. 

 

1. Key principles  

 There will be a range of learning and development opportunities available to all 

members irrespective of their political group or independent status  

 That member development supports and enhances  

 That there is a consistency of approach to member development  

 That a culture of learning is encouraged that regards continuous member 

development as vital to the Council’s success  

 That learning and development will support the aims of the Council Plan and 

underpin our values  

 Members have ownership of the development programme via the Member 

Development Working Group  

2. Policy implementation  

 

2.1 The policy will be implemented: 

 By the Member Development Working Group with support from the Democratic 

and Scrutiny Team  

 With the assistance of group leaders who will actively encourage their members 

to participate in development activities and give feedback on learning and 

development  

 By monitoring on a regular basis to ensure take up and effectiveness of 

development activity  

Page 84



 
 

3 
 

3.0 Identification of member development needs  

3.1 There are a number of ways in which member development needs can be identified 

including: 

 Member induction programme – this is a comprehensive programme delivered 

for all new elected members and those returning into office following Borough 

Council elections and individually after bi-elections  

 Committee membership – certain committees have additional development 

requirements identified to enable members to engage fully and ensure the 

quality of decision making is maintained 

 Overview and Scrutiny – the development of the annual scrutiny work 

programme and associated project groups often highlights the need for further 

learning and development including briefings on specific topics. Where possible, 

learning and development opportunities will be made available to all elected 

members  

 Emerging issues identified by either the political or officer leadership – these may 

lead to mandatory or optional e-learning and/or briefings  

 Via the political group structures – fed in via their representatives on the Member 

Development Working Group  

 By individual members accessing the Council’s e-learning platform (aspire 

learning) and identifying core skills courses for completion  

 By individual members making an application to be considered by their group 

leader (where appropriate), Service Director – Corporate (Senior Democratic 

Services Officer as Deputy) and learning and development   

3.2 This information will help to build up the rolling member development programme 

overseen by the Member Development Working Group. The Member Development 

Working Group terms of reference are attached at Appendix 1.  

4.0 Methods of delivery  

 Regular member bulletin highlighting member resources available via the 

Council, Local Government Association, East Midlands Council’s, Centre for Public 

Scrutiny and other key organisations supporting the sector  

 E-learning through aspire learning  

 Internal development and training courses 

Page 85



 
 

4 
 

 Development and training courses run in partnership with other authorities 

and/or partner organisations  

 External courses and events promoted by organisations supporting the sector 

e.g. Local Government Association 

5.0 Application for funding from the member development budget and/or a 

members’ expenses contribution 

5.1 We are able to source the majority of member development opportunities at no or 

very low cost, but we do have a small annual budget available for specialist training 

opportunities to respond to specific needs e.g. media training for cabinet members.  

The Member Development budget runs from April to March.  A proportion of the 

funding from this budget is pre-allocated for the annual member development plan 

but we retain some flexibility to respond to requests from individual members to 

respond to specific needs.  At the start of the financial year, 50% of the budget will 

be allocated to training for all members, through the Member Development Plan. 

50% of the funding will be made available for individual training and development 

requests. We also need to carefully consider requests for training where you wish to 

claim members’ expenses for example for a hotel stay or train tickets even if the 

training itself is free.  

 In December the budget spend so far in the financial year will be reviewed and 

funding may be transferred from one area to another if there has been an 

underspend or if something is requested that is in excess of the budget area. 

5.2 There is a short application form to help us consider individual requests. The form is 

attached at Appendix 2. All requests are to be e-mailed to Helen Brightmore, 

Member and Civic Support Officer.  

Applications will then be forwarded to the relevant Group Leader for approval 

(inclusive of any proposed costs which would come out of the Member Development 

budget). 

When approved by the Group Leader and returned to Helen Brightmore these will 

then be passed to the Service Director - Corporate (or Senior Democratic and 

Scrutiny Officer as deputy) for final approval. Please allow at least five working days 

for consideration. 

6.0 Communications 

Page 86



 
 

5 
 

6.1 Successful communication is an important part of member development. There will 

be a weekly newsletter for members which highlights resources available to 

members and forthcoming learning and development opportunities. The newsletter 

may also be used to share learning from members attending external courses or 

events.  

6.2 Members are sent calendar appointments and reminders about future events and 

activities. Group leaders and representatives of the member development group are 

also asked to encourage members to access opportunities and identify further 

needs.  

7.0 Monitoring and evaluation  

7.1 The Member Development Working Group is a forum for discussion, planning and 

evaluation. After every learning and development opportunity a feedback form is 

available for members to tell us about their experience with the training, what 

worked well and what could be improved. A summary of this information will be 

discussed at the next member development group.  

 

7.2 The Member Development Working Group will also receive a summary of the 

requests made and approved for individual learning and development courses. They 

may ask the member attending to write a short piece for the member e-bulletin to 

help share the learning.  

 

8.0 Resources and support  

 

8.1 This policy will be delivered by the Member Development Working Group with officer 

support from the Democratic and Scrutiny team within the policy and 

communications service.  A dedicated budget is available for member learning and 

development and access to members expenses where appropriate. The Council’s e-

learning platform aspire learning is also available free of charge to members and 

offers a wide variety of courses including governance, equalities, health and safety 

and managing people.  

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Appendix 2 

Member development working group  

Terms of Reference 

Purpose  

To provide strategic oversight of the council’s member development arrangements and 

maintain progress on the member development improvement plan to ensure learning and 

development is effective in building elected member capacity.  

 

Objectives  

 

1) To provide oversight and challenge to the development and delivery of the member 

development strategy and rolling member development plan.   

2) To support and influence the development of member induction/refresher 

programmes.  

3) To monitor the member development budget and consider applications for spend.  

4) To support group leaders in identifying member learning and development needs and 

promoting uptake of learning and development opportunities. 

5) To identify and consider best practice, information and development opportunities to to 

support future member development activity.  

6) To consider evaluation and feedback from member development activity and develop 

improvement suggestions to further enhance member development activity.   

7) To consider and offer insight into member development related issues emerging from 

corporate activity for example investors in people, employee surveys, customer 

satisfaction surveys and peer challenge.  

 

Meeting arrangements 

Meetings will take place every two months. There may be the need for e-mail discussions in 

between meetings for more urgent items such as member development training approval. 

The Member and Civic Support Officer will co-ordinate the meetings. The agenda and 

papers will be distributed one week before the meeting.  

Membership  

 Cabinet member for Governance (Chair) 

Page 89



 
 

2 
 

 Overview and Scrutiny Chairs  

 One elected member from the leading group  

 One elected member from each of the minority group/s  

 Senior Democratic and Scrutiny Officer  

 Member and Civic Support Officer  

 Representative from Human Resources  

 

In addition, the group may co-opt additional elected members, officers and partner 

agencies where appropriate to particular project work or emerging issues.  

 

  
 

Page 90



Appendix 3 

Version 3: December 2019 

Application for training - including for funding from the member 

development budget and/or a members’ expenses contribution  

Note: We are able to source the majority of member development opportunities at no or very low cost but 

we do have a small annual budget available for specialist training opportunities to respond to specific needs 

e.g. media training for cabinet members.  Most of the funding from this budget is pre-allocated for the annual 

member development plan but we retain some flexibility to respond to requests from individual members to 

respond to specific needs.  We also need to carefully consider requests for training where you wish to claim 

members’ expenses, for example for a hotel stay or train tickets even if the training itself is free. It is also 

important to remember that even if a course is free there may be a charge for non-attendance (typically £50 - 

£100).  

Please answer the questions below and e-mail your request to 

helen.brightmore@chesterfield.gov.uk or return to the Democratic Services office (Room 

1.20). Applications will be considered by the relevant group lead and Service Director- 

Corporate (or Senior Democratic and Scrutiny Officer as deputy). 

Q1 Your name: 

 

Q2 Name of the course/activity: 

 

Q3 Name of the training provider: 

 

Q4 The date and location of the course/activity:  

 

Q5  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 91

mailto:helen.brightmore@chesterfield.gov.uk


 
 

2 
 

Overview of the training activity including aims and objectives: 

Q6 How will you benefit from the training?  

 

 

 

Q7 What will the wider benefit to the Council be and how will you share the 

learning with other elected members e.g. article for the member development 

newsletter, talk at member development group/ groups sessions etc.?  

 

 

 

 

Q8 Cost of the course/activity and where the funding is coming from e.g. member 

development budget, Scrutiny, another service budget, free or another 

organisation: 

 

 

 

 

Q9 Estimate on additional costs e.g. hotel, travel expenses etc.: 

 

 

 

 

 

Summary from Member and Civic Support Officer, including budget costs:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 92



 
 

3 
 

 

To be completed by Group Leader and Service Director - Corporate (or Senior 

Democratic and Scrutiny Officer):  

Group Leader’s signature:  

 

Application approved             Reason:                                                                                                                                                     

Application refused   

 

SD -C (or SDSO) signature: 

 

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Delegation Report
	6 Assurance Framework for Staveley Town Deal
	Appendix One - Assurance framework
	Appendix Two - Full EIA form (STD)

	7 Review of the Member Development Policy
	Appendix 1 - Member Development Policy rev 2021
	Appendix 2 - Terms of reference
	Appendix 3 - Application for member training March 2021 version


